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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directows
Hasic Chergy Corporation and Subsidiarics
7/F Basic Petroleum Bldg.

104 Carlos Palanca St., Legaspi Village
Makati City

We have andited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Basic Energy Carporation
amd ity subsidiaries, which camprise the consclidated statements of financial position as at
Diccember 31, 2014 and 2013, and the consolidated statemenis of comprehensive income, statements
of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for each of the three years in (he period endud
December 31, 2014, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Muanagement’s Rexponsibility for the Consclidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and faiv presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reparting Standards, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary 1o coable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstalement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Char respansibility is to express an opinion on these consolidaled financial statements based on our
audits. We eonducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Thaose
standards reguire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan ang perform the audit to obtain
reasunable assurance ahout whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstalement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obrain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consulidated finangial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the azscssment of the risks of material misstatement of the consalidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or crror. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
arder to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, bul not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
cvaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablencss of accounting
estimales made by management, as well as cvalvating the overal] presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe lhat the audit evidence we have oblaincd ix sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our vpinion, the consolidated {inancial statermenls prosent Dairly, inoall material respects, the
Doancial position of Basic Encrey Corporation and subsidiarics as al December 31, 2014 and 2013,
and their [inancial perfonmmance and their cash Dows or cach of the throee years in the period coded
December 31, 2014 in accordance with Philippine Fingncial Reporling Standards,

SYCIP GORRES VELAY( & CO.

e baflscann
-, M_I
Jaime F. del Rosario
Pariner
{TPA Certificate Mo, 30915
SEC Accreditanion Na. 0076-AR-3 (Giroup A),
March 21, 2013, valid until March 20, 2016
Tax Identfication No, 142-006-004
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-72-2012,
April 17, 2012, valid until April 16, 2015
F'I'E Mo 4751273, January 3, 2015, Makati {','ity

March 26, 25
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BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES (a f_ : J

CONSGLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITIQN. | ¢ 1 206 |

-
Ll EJFI’I‘H‘T T|}||\"|Hr"
PORTRRTY

014 \ 2013

ASSETS \
Current Asscts ,
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5) B47,143,661 R80,542.774
Feceivables (Note 6) 3,644,289 3,031,899
Prepayments and ather current assets {Nate 7) 2,205,616 1,676,232
Total Current Assets 53,083,506 85,250,905
Noncurren! Assels
Available-for-sale (AFS) tinancial assets (Note 8) 364,298,764 431,425,196
[vestment properties (Nate 4) 203,458,387 200,634,343
Deferred charges (Note 10) 54,622,671 46,248,903
Project developmem costs (Nute 4) 151,979,511 39,286,179
Property and equipment (Mate 11)

At ¢ost 4,141,763 5,172,506

At revalued amount 21,003,979 22687313
Deferred income tax asset (Note 20)) 6,846,316 -
Diher noneurrcal assels 3,757,002 3,757,602
Total Nenecurrent Assets . ¥1ih108,993 769,212,042
TOTAL ASSETS PB63,192,559 BE34,462 947

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Ejability

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Note 12) P13,417,841 B1.6498 s07
Nonrcurrent Liabilities
Acerued retirement benelits (Note 19) 11,913,169 1,967,637
Dividends pavabiec 388,714 888,714
Treferred income lax labilily (Note 200 - 6,167,183
Total Noncurrent Liabilitics 12,801,843 15,023,536
Total Liabilities 26,219,724 16,722,143
Equity Adtrihutalde 1o Equity Holders of Parent
Capital stock fheld by 6,711 and 6,799 eguity holders
in 2014 and 2013, respectively| (Note 13} 632,873,378 631,040,878
Additional paid-in ¢apital 32,699,360 32,099,360
Revaluation increment in office condominium (Note 11} 14,630,975 15,800,300
Mot unrealized gains on changes in faie value of AFS
financial assets {(Note ¥) 36,178,107 33,364,260
Remeasurement Insz on accrued retirement benatits (5,010,165} (2,704,577
Cumulative teanslation adjustment (2,105,594} TIB. 817
Retained camines 131,173,688 133,574,416
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the
Parent Company 847,439,734 B45,402 463
Non-controlling interests (hote 15} (7,226,89%) (4,421,659)
8401212,835 840,980,804
Treasury stock - at cost {Note 14] (3, 240¢,000) (3,240,000
Total Equity _ H36,972.835 B37,740,804
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQHUITY P8A3,102,550  £E54,462.847

See secampaapig Mares 1o Canschdared Fipaneial Sraremes s
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BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years I'nded December 31

2014 2013 012
INCOME
Inwrest mecme (Mete 16) ®14,927,817 P13,500,118 PIT,707 366
CGrain omosale of AFS tinancial axsets (Note 8) 11,530,398 - -
Lhvidend incnme (Nale §3 5145575 3,004,053 754,800
Fair vilye adjustment on inveslrnen! propertias (Note 2 2,824,044 2,155,000 73,393,045
Fareipn exchange fais - nel - A 883,241 -
Incame from previgus sale of Mase Petrolewm and
Mingsals, Ine {181"MI) (Mote 4} - - 224755 250
Cithers 24798 1,233 AR
__d6TsETH 30,5440, 545 MR 433,031
COSTS AND EXPENSES
General and administative expenses (Nale 18) 49,337,406 50,530,758 49,383 381
Foreipn cvchangs losses - net 2644127 - 5,219 544
Pruvisien far impairment on AFS financial
sty [Mpte ) - - 3,188,403
_ ) 51,980,233 50,530,759 57,790,930
INCOME. (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX, (15,227,503) (19,590,214} 260,842,991
PROVISION FOR (BFNEFIT FROM)
INCOME TAX MNotwe 240)
Current 3420465 3,725,629 16,173,203
Ieferred ) (12,025,301} 3,429,522 {863,867
- . ' (4.595.926) 155451 15,304,341
NET INCOME (LOSS} _(PGE3LSTT) (F17.145,665) P45, 538,650
QTIHFER COMFPREHENSIVE INCOME
Clrher comprehensive incnme io be reclossified to prafit
o lass e fubseguent periods.
Unrealiced paies in AVS financi] ossets {Note 83 E2,513,K37 £15.294,875 £18.496,932
ineime s effecy - : 82,046
- 1813837 [5254 875 LES7807E
Crumubalive tragslation adjusiment (1,577,141} TI&ELT -
Income tax effect . —
_ (2,577,141 718.%17 -
} 136,596 16,013,602 14,578,978
Ciker comprehensive foss nof fo be reclassified fo profic
o dass i subyequent periods; .
Revaluation increment in office condominium - - 11.030,278
lucome tax effcel ) - - (1,309,083
- - 7,721,195
Remessyrenent pain (loss) on
retircment berefits Babiily (Mote 199 (3,193,607) 951 (84 (1,150, 3309
lncgme jax effeol 988,104 LELER P 345,099
' {2,305.58R] B63,760 (R0S,231)
_ _ (2,305,588) £65,760 8,913,564
OTHER COMPRERENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (2.0068.882) 14.674%,452 25,454,042
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) _ {P8,700,46%) (11466213 #271,033.550

(Forward)

AR



Years Ended December 31
2014 ERE EDE
MET INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
ety Rhalders of the Pavent Company {(BIE719.4062) (H22 133 B45) 245,954 552
Mepcontrolling inferest (3,052,515) {4421 800y B A O

{P6,631,577) (FRNN4E665) PR SIRES0
TOTAL COMPRERENSIVE INCOME (LOSS}
ATTRIBUTARLE TO:

Equity holders of the Parent Company (B5,805229) {84,044 413) AITLO51 484
Mon-contmolling intercst (2,505,240 (4,421,800} (17,9021
- (W, 700486%) __ (P10,466,213) F27L,033,552

EARNINGS (LOSS )PER SHARE (Note 21)
Basic (#1001} (RO BLIN
13iluted L {M,001) {P0.009) F{.083

S8 T OREIHPIHE Mare R ta Consodinpied Mo Setementt

MG T
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BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

e 2014 3 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Ineorme (loss) before imeome tax {P15,227503) (E15,599)214) HIE B42 991
A djustments far

Irrerest inconne {Nate 146) (26,927,717} (18,50H,118) {17,707 364]

Realized gein froam sale of AFS financial assets (11,83 308} - -

Mividand income (5,145,575} (3,000,953} {754,990

DPepreciation and amerti zation (Mo 18} 3,486,723 3,264 564 Jedl iz

Fair value sdjustment vo lovestnent propecties (Mote 9) (2.824,044) (2.155,0600) (73,391,045}

Unrealized toreign exchanpe losses (gaing} ~ et 1,684,581 (4,893,272 1,091,773

Movements in accrued redrement benafies (Mote 159) 651,835 L,004,95] 647,942

rovision for impairment on AFS flounciul assets - - T TRKADG

Cthers e - (190.398) 402,597
Ciperating [neame (foss] before working capital changer {45,938 098) (47,060,440 V80,500,837
Diecrease (nciense) i

Shurt-lermn cush investmenls - R2140.(HIG 140,702

Receivables {612 390) 44,112,598 {4, 0440,071)

Prepavinents ond other current assec1s (619,3%55) (245,776) (389,914)
Increase (decresse) io sceounls payable and arcreed expenses 11,621,828 741064 {4,246, 801)
Mel cash penerated o {used i) sperations {35.546,045) 5,090,430 132,174,533
Irsterast rooeived 16,952,715 £0,806,196 11277419
Ingame Exes paid (Including final taves

on interest insurme) {3.37@9}_}__*“ £3,725,985) {12,720,266)
Nt cash [(ows peoeruted Trom (used in) operating activities {21571,233 18,170,651 132 731 L6
CASIH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions [o:

Deferred charges (Mote 103 (8,373, 788) (40,349 668) 4,504,959

Project development costs (Note 10) {112,583,337)

AFS [naniiul assels - (126,688,325 (234,571,375

lovestment property (MNote 95 - (5, (00,000
IProcceds (vm sale of AFS financial assets 101,764,074 - :
Nel movements from long term cash invesimenl - £, 157,500 (6,431,500
Additivns to propearty and equipment (772,646) {436,904) (3,365792)
D¥ividends reccived 5145575 3,000,953 734,890
Proceeds from sale of property and eqguipmant - 1,421,000
Met cash flows used in investing activitics (14,%30,097) (163,136,444} {246,698 HIE)
CASH FLOWES FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of eapital ook 7,942,500 - -
Exercise of stock nption - 4,642,500 -
Invrense in deposit for future stoek subseription - &.675 (00
Met cash flows penerated from financing activities 7,832,500 14,642 504 6,675,000
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CIANGES

ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {4430,2R4) 8,629,068 {2,025,476)
NET DECRIASE TN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (35 J50,118) (121,304,225% {109 31T.006)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REGINNING OF

YEAR ) Xi),542,774 202,426,999 A1,754,1H08

CASI AND CASH EQLTYALENTS AT END OF YEAR

$47,143,661

B0, 542,774

E20Z 436,599

See cocompanmying Noles foe Conveligatsd Finanelal Siatetrens.
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BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corpurate Information, Organizativnal Changes and Authorization far Issuance of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Corporate [nfortnation

Basic Energy Corporation (BEC or the Parent Company), a publicly listed corporation, and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the Group) were incorporated in the Philippines, The
Parent Company’s registered business address is at 7T Dasic Ietroleum Bldg., 104 Carlos Palanea
St., Legaspi Villape, Makati City.

On August 10, 2007, the Philippine Sceuritics and Exchange Commission {SEC) approved the
amendment of the Parent Company's primary and secondary purposes, transforming the Parent
Company inte a holding company with diversifiesd business interests in the different fields of
renewable energy and alternative fucls, while pursaing its core business in oil and gas exploration
and developmeni.

On May 28, 2014, July 10, 2014 and September 10, 2014, the BOD, the stockholders and SEC,
respectively, approved the amendments of the Parent Company”s Articles of Incorporation and By-
laws to specify the principal address from Makati City to 7/F Basic Petroleum Bldp., 104 Carlos
Palanca 5t., Legaspi Village, Makati City and Lo change the date of annual meeting of
stockholders from any day of May 1o Lhe last Wednesday of June or such date and time as the
Board of Direclors may ix prior o June of cach year, respectively.

Qrganizational Changes

The Parent Company amended its By-laws on June 29, 2011 to delineate the position and
respensibilities of the Chairman from the Chisf Executive Officer (CEQ) of the Parent {ompany
and to define the duties and responsibilities of the President and the Chict Operating Otficer
(COO). These amendments were in line with corpurate governance principles enjoining the
separation of the positions and responsibilities of the Chairman and the CFD, and were appraved
by the SEC on July 29, 2611, On August 31,2011, the Board of 1Directors (BOD) appointed
Mr. Oscar C. Bte Venecia as Chairman and Mr. Oscar L. De Venecia, Jr. as President and CED,
The duties and responsibilities of the COQ were incorporated with those of the Executive Vice
President,

On February 28, 2001, former Speaker of the House of Representatives, Mr. lose (. e Venecia, Ir,,
was appointed by the BOD as the Chairman of the Advisory Board.

Authorization for Issuance of the Consolidated Financial Statements
The consolidated {inancial statcments were authorized for issuance by the BOD during its meeting
on March 26, 2015,

2. Basls of Preparation, Stutement of Compliance and | E}ﬁ"ﬂimm}' of Significani Accounting and
Financial Reporting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial slatemenls have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except fur
guoted available-for-sale (AFS) Ninancial assets and investment proparties thal have been
measured al fair value and oftice condominium that have been measured at revalued amounts.
The conselidated financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, which is the Group’s
functional and presentation currency. Amounts are rounded off 1o the nearest ['hiiippine Fusu

unless atherwise indicated.
SRR



Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in compliance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (FFRS).

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated Mnancial statements include the accounts of the Parent Company and ily
subsidiaries after eliminating significant intercompany balances and transactions. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the Parent Company,
using uniform and consistent accounting policies.

Contral is achieved when the Parent Company is exposed, ot has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and haz the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee. ‘The Parent Company conirals an investee if and only if the Parcut Company has all
ol the following:

»  Power over the investee {i.c. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investes);

# Lxposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

= The ahility to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Subsidiaries arc fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Parent
Company obiains cantral, and continue to be consolidaled until the date that such control ceases.
All intra-group balances, transactions, unrsalized gains and losses resulting from Intra-group
transactions are climinated in full.

Suhsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entitics over which the Parent Company bas control.

All intra-group balances, {ransaclions, ineome and expenses, and profits and losses resulting from
intra-group transactions that are recopnized in assets are eliminated in full.

The ownemship of the Parent Company over the follewing subsidiaries as ol Ducember 31, 2014
and 2013 arc a8 tollows:

Subsidrarics _ 2014 013 Narure of Husiness
Basic Diversifted Indusiria! Holdings, Inc, (3D L0 100,04 Investmenl holding
Real estate (no development
iBasic, Ing. {1Dasic) L0400 10000 activities) and
infurmation technolegy
Exploration and
development of

Basic Renewahles, Inc. (BRI L0E.00 100, 0} _
renewable cnerpy
FESOILICES
Developmeni of biuluels
Basic Hiofuels Corporation (BBIC) 10000 1N0e0%  (ne development
activiries)
Lxploration and
Rasic Geothermal Energy Corporation (BGFC) 100.00 10000 :i:’f}l’fﬁféﬁ;n
[OROUTCCE
Sonthwest Resources, Ine, (5WHY T1.5% 72.58 Uil exploration u“{.!
' T : ) ' investment holding
Grandway Growp Limited (Qrandwav) 70.00 TO.00 Tnvestiment holding
I'T Rasic Energi Sohusi {PT BFS) 66.5() 66,50 4] exploration

VIR S



Nom-conmroliing Interest

Where the ownership of a subsidiary is Jess than 100%, and therefore a non-controlling interest
exists, any losses of that subsidiary are atiributed fo the non-cantrolling interest even if that results
in a deficit balance.,

Non-controlling interest represents the 30% equily inlerest in the net assets of Grandway, 33.50%
equily interest in the net asset of PT BES and 27.42% equity interest in the net assets of SWR as at
December 31, 2014 and 2013

Non-contrelling interest are presented separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidared statements of changes in equity and within {he equity scction in the
consolidated statement of financial position, separately from the equity attributable 1o the cquity
holders of the Parent Company. Nan-centrolling interest shares in the lusses even if the losses
exceed the non-controlling equity interest in the subsidiary,

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, witheut a loss of control, is aceounted for s an
cuuity transaction, 1 the (Group loses control aver a subsidiary, it:

Derecognizes the assets {including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
Derecognizes the carrying amount of any nun-controlling interest

Derecognizes the cumulative trauslation differences, recognized in equily

Recognizes the fair value of the consideration reeeived

Revopnizes the fair value of any investment retained

« Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

o Reclassifies the Parent Company’s share of components previously recognized in other
comprehensive income or OCT to pratit or loss or retained eamings, as appropriate,

Changes in Policies and Disclosurcs

The accounting policies adopled in the preparation of the consolidated financial staternents are
consistent with those of the previous financial year exeept for the following new and amended
PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and Philippine Interpretations based on
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and improvements to PFRS
which were adopted as al Janpuary 1, 2014:

¢ Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, PFRS 12, Disclosure af
Interests in (ther Entities and PAS 27, Separate Financial Siatements
These umendments provide an exception to the consolidation requirement for entitics that
meet the delinitivn of an investment entity under FFRS 10, The exceplion W consolidation
requires investment entitics to account for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or foss
(FVIL). The amendments mst be applied retrospectively, subject to cerlain ransition relicl,
These amendments have no ¢ffcet on the (roup since it does not qualify to be an investmuent
entity under PFRS 10,

s DPAS 32, Financial nstruments: Presemtation - Offsetting Finuncial Assets and Financial
Liabilities (Amendments)
The amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforcesble right to set-off”
and the criterla tor non-simultaneaus settlement mechanisms of clewring houses to qualify for
offsetting and are applied retrospectively. The amendments have no effect on the Group,
since none of the entities in thy Croup has any offsetting arrangement.

AU il
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PAR 38, Smprairment of dssels - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Finuncial Asseis
{Amendments)

These amendments remove the unintended consequences of PIRS 13, Fafr Valwe
Meusurement, on the disclosures required under PAS 36, In addition, ihese amendments
require discinsure of the recoverable amounts for the assets or cash-generating units (CGUs)
Lo which impairment lass has heen recognized or reversed during the period. The
apphication of these amendments has no impaet on the disclosure in the Group’s consolidated
(inancial statements,

PAS 19, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Novation of Derfvatives end
Contimuation of Hedge Avcaunting {Amendments)

These amendments provide relicl from discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a
derivative designated as a hedging insteurnent meets certain criteria and refrospective
application is required. These amendments have no impaet on the Group as the Group has no
derivatives during the current or prior perinds.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 21, Levies

{FRIC 21 clarifies that an entity recognizes a liabilily for a levy when the activity that
triggers payment, as identified by the relevant legislation, ocours. For a levy that is tripgercd
upon reaching a minimum threshold, the interpretation clarifies that no liability shoubl be
atiticipaterd hefore the specified minimum threshold is reached. Retrospective application is
reguired for IFRIC 21, The interpretation has no impact on the Group’s consotidated
financial statements as it has applied the recognition principles under PAS 37, Provisions,
{‘ontingent Liahilities and Contingent Assets, consistent with the requirements of IFRIC 21
i prior years.

Anmual Improvesenis fo PFRSs (2010-2012 cycle)

In the 2010 - 2012 annual improvements cyche, seven amendments to six standards were
issued, which inciuded an amendment to PFRS 13, The emendment to FFRS 13 is effective
immediately and it clarifies that shori-torn reeeivables and payables with no stated interest
rates can be measured at invoice amounts when the effect of discounting is imimnaterial. This
amendment has no impaci on the Group’s vonsolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements tn PFRSs (2011-2013 eycle)

In the 2011 - 2013 annual improvements cycle, four amendments to four standards were
fssucd, which included an amendient to PYRS |, Firse-time Adoption of Philippine Fingnciod
Reporiing Standards - First-time Adoprion of PFRS. The amendment to PFRS 1 is effective
immedialely. It clarifies that an entity may choose to apply either a current standard or a new
standard that is not yet mandatory, but permits early application, provided either standard is
applied consistently throughout the periods presented in the entity’s first PFRS financial
statemenis. This amendment has no impact on the Group as it is nol a Qirst e PFRS

adopter,

Standards apd Interpredations Issued but not vet Effective

The Group will adopt the [ollowing standards end interpretations enumerated below when these
become effective.

Effective Date to be Determined

PFRS 9, Finanrcial histruments - Classification and Measurement (2010 version)
PFRS 9 (2010 version) reflects the first phase on the replacement of PAS 3% and spplies to the
¢lassificarion and measurcment of financie! assets and liabilities as defined in PAS 39.
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PFRS 9 requires al] financial assets to be measured at fair value at initial recognition. A debt
financial asset may, if the fair vatue oprien {FVQ) is not invoked, be subsequently measured at
amortized cost ifi is held within a buginess model that has the abjective to hold the assets to
collect the conlractual cash Hlows and its contractual terms give rise, on specified dates, to
cash flows that are solcly paymonts of prineipal and interest on the principal outstanding. All
other debt instruments arc subsequently measured at FVPL. All equity financial assets are
measured al fair value cithor through O] or profit or loss. Equity financial assets held for
trading must be measyred at FYPL. For FVO liahilities, the amount of change in the fair
value of 2 lisbility that is auributable to changes in credit risk must be presented in OCT. The
remainder of the change in fair value is presented in profit ar loss, unless presentation of the
fair value change relating, o the entity's own credit risk in OCT would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss, All ather PAS 39 classification and measurement
requirements for financial liabilitics have been carried forward to PFRS 9, including the
embedded derivative bifurcation rules and the eriteria for using the FVO. The adoption of the
first phase of PIRS ¢ will have an eflect on the ¢lassification and measurement of the Group’s
financial assets, bui will potenlially have no impact on the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities.

PFRS 9 (2010 version) is eflective for annual periods heginning on or after January 1, 2015,
This mandaiory adoplion date was moved to Jamary 1, 2018 when the final version of

PIFRS 9 was adopted by the FRSC. Such adaption, however, is still for approval by the Board
of Accountancy (BOA}.

»  Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
This interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors, The SEC and the
FRSC have deferred the effactivity of this interpretation until the final revenue standard is
isgued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board (LASB) and an evaluation of the
reguirements of the final revenue standard against the practices of the Philippine real estate
industry i completed. Adoption of the interpretaiion when it becomes effective will not have
any impact om the consolidated financial statements of the Groaip.

The following new standards and amendments issued by the {4SE were already adopted by the
FRSC bat are still for approval of the BOA.

Effective January 1, 2015:

s PAS 19, Employee Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions (Amendments)
The amendments apply to contributions fram emplavess or third parties to defined benefit
plans. Where contributions arc linked to service, they should be attributable 1o periads of
serviee as a negative benefil. These amendments clarify that, if the amount of the contribution
is independent of the number of year of service, an entity is permitted to recognizc such
contributions as a reduction in the service cost in the period in which the serviee is rendered,
instead of allocating the confributions to the periods of service. This amendment is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015, 1 is nol expected that this
amendment would be relevant 1o ihe Group, since none of the entities within (he Gooup has
defined benefit plans with contributions from empleyess or third parties.
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Annual tmprovements ro PFRSs (2010-2012 cycle)

The Annoal Improvements to PFRSs (2010-2012 cycle) are effcctive for annual periods heginning
on or after January 1, 2015 and are not expectad 1o have a material impact on the (roup. They
include;

v DPFRS 2, Share-bused Payment - Defirition of Vesting Condition

This improvement is applicd prospectively and clarifies various issues relating to the

definitions of performance and service conditions which are vesting conditions, including:

v A performance condition must contain a service condition

+ A performance target must be met while the counterparty is rendering service

+ A performance target may relate to the operations or activities of an entity, or to those
of another enlity in the samc group

» A performance condition inay be a market or non-market condition

+ If the counterparty, regardlees of the reason, ceases to pravide service during the
vesting period, the service condition is nut satistied.

= PFRE 3, Business Combinations - Accowitmg for Cantingent Consideration in o Business
Combination
The amendment is applied prospectively for business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on er after July 1, 2014, [t clarifies thal a contingent consideration that
i% not classified as equity 15 subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss
whether or nat it falls within the scope ol PAS 39, Fanancial Instruments: Recognition
aind Measurement (ot PTRE 9, Fingneial fastruments, if carly adopted). The Group shall
censider this amendment for future business combinations.

s DPFRS 8, Operating Segments - Aggregation of Uperating Segments end Reconcitiation of
the Totaf of the Reporfuble Segmenis’ Assets to the Entity 's Assets
The amendments are applicd retrospectively and clarify that:

a.  An cnlity must disclose the judgments made by management in applying the
appregration criterig in the standard, ineluding a brief description of operating
segments that have been aggregated and the economic characteristics (e.p., sales and
gross margins) used to assess whether the segments are *similar’.

b, The reconciliation of sepment assets to total assets is only required Lo be disclosed if
the reconciliation is reported to the chief operating decision maker, similar 1o the
required disclosure for segment Habilities,

v PAS 16, Properyy, Plant and Equipment - Revaluation Method - Froportionate
Restaiement of Accumplated Depreciation
The amendment is applied retrospectively and larities in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that the
asset may be revalued by reference o the observable data on either the gross or the net
carrying amount. In addition, the accumulated depreciation or amortization is the
difference between the gross and carrying amounts of the asset.

o PAS 24, Relafed Purty Disclosures - Key Menagement Persennel
The amendment is applicd retrospectively and clarifies that a management entity, which is
an entity that provides key monagement personnel services, is a related party subject to the
related party diselosures. In addifion, an cntity that vses a management entity is requined
1o disclose the expenses incurrad for manapement services,
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Anna! Improvenenes fo PFRSs (2011-2013 wyele)

The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2011-2013 cyele) are ellective for annual perieds
beginning on ar afier Yanvary 1, 2015 and are not eaxpecled to have a malerial impact on the
Group. They inctude:

» PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Scope Exveptions for Joit Arrangements
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifizs the following regarding the scope
exceptions within PIRS 3:

4. Juint arrangements, not just joint ventures, are outside the scope of PFRS 3.
b, This scope exception applies only to the accounting in the financial statenients of the
joint arrangement itself,

s PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement - Portfolio Exception
The amendment is applied prospectively and clari{ies that the portfolio exception in
PFRS 13 ¢an be applicd not only 0 [Inancial asscls and [inancial liabilities, but alse to
ather cantragts within the scope of PAS 39 {or PFRS 9, ax applivabie).

e DAS A0, Mvesiment Property
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that PFRS 3, and not the descriptian
of ancillary services in PAS 40, is used to determine if the transaction is the purchase of
an asset or business combination. The description of ancillary services in PAS 40 only
differentiales between investment property and owner-cccupied property {i.e., property,
nlant and equipment).

Effective in January 1, 2016

PAS 16, Property, Flont and Egquipment, and PAY 38, fniangille Assets - Clarification of
Acceprable Methods of Depreciafion and Amortization (Amendments)

The amendments clarify the principle in PAY 16 and PAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of
economic benefits that are generated from operating o business {of which the asset is part)
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. As aresult, a
revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may
oniy be used in very limited circunistances t amartize intangible assets. The amendments are
effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 20106, with early
adoption permittad. The Group does not expect that these amendments will have material
impact in the Group’s future consalidated financial statements.

PAS 16, Property, Plunt and Eguipment, and PAS 41, Agriculture - Beurer Plants
(Amendments)

The amendments changs the sccounting requirements for bidogical asscts that incet the
definition of bearer plunts. Under the amendments, biolopical assets that meet the definition
of bearcr plants will no fonper be within the scope of PAS 41, Instead, PAS 16 will apply.
After initial recopnition, bearer planis will be measured under PAS 16 al accumulated cosi
{before maturity) and using either the cost model or revaluation model (aftee maturity), The
amendmenis also require that produce thal grows on bearer plants will remain in the scope of
PAS 41 measored at fair valne less costs to sell, For government grants related to bearer
plants, PAS 20, dccounting Jor Govermmem Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance,
witl apply. The amendments are retrospectively effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January I, 2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments are net expected to
have any impact (o the Group a2 1he Gronp doees not have any bearer plants,
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PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements - Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements
fAmendmenis)

The amendments will aliow entities ta usc the equity methed to account {or investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial statenents. Entities
already applying PFRS and electing ta change (o the equity method in its separale financial
statements will have (o apply that change retrospectively. Tor first-time adopters of PFRS
electing to use the cquity method in its separate financial statements, they will be required to
apply this methad from the date of transition w PFRS. This amendment has no inpact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements,

PFRS 10, Consolidated Financiad Staterments and PAS 28, Iivestments in Associates and Joint
Fentures - Sale or Contribution vl Assets between an investar and its Associate or Joint
Yenlure

These amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in
FFRS 10 and thase in PAS 28 (2011} in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between
ar investor and its associae or juint venture. The amendments require that a full gain or loss
is recognized when & transaction involves a business (whether it is howsed in a subsidiary or
nuot), & partial pain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not
constitute a business, even il these assets are housed in a subsidiary, These amendments are
effective from annuel periods beginning on or after | January 2016. This amendment has no
impact on the Greup's cansolidaled {inancial statements.

FERS 11, Joint Arrangements - Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations
{Amendments)

The amendments Lo PFRS 11 require thar a jnint operator accounting for the acquisition of an
interest in & joinl operation, in which the activity of the jeint operation constitutes a business
must apply the relevant PTRS 3 principles for business combinations accounting. The
amendments also clarify that a previously hetd interest in a joint vperation is not remeasured
on the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joinl operation while joint control is
retained, Tn addition, a scope exclusion has been added to PFRE 11 1o specify that the
amendments o net apply when the parties sharing joint contral, including the: reporting entity,
are under eommuon contro] of the same ultimate controiling party, The amendments apply o
hoth the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and the acquisition of any
additicna] intercsts in (he same joint operation and are prospectively efteetive for annual
periods bepinning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. These
amendments are uol expected (@ have any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
Atatemmenls,

PFRS 14, Regilatory Deferral Accounts

PFRS 14 is an opticnal standard that allows an entity, whose activitics arc subject 1o rate-
regulation, to continue applying most of its existing accounting policies {or regulatory deferral
account balances upon its first-time adoption of PFRS. Entitics that adopt FFRS 14 must
present the regulatory deferral accounts as separate line items on the statement of financial
position and present movements in these account balances as separalc line items in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive ingome (OCIY The standard roguires
disclosures on the nature nf, and risks associated with, the entity™s rate-repulation and the
effects of that rate -regulation on its financial statements. Since the Group is an existing PFR%
meparer, this standard would oot apply.
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Anrmad faprovements to PFRY (2012-1014 cyule)

The Annoal inprovements 10 PFRSs (2012-2014 cyele) are elTeetive for annual periods beginning
on o after January 1, 2016 aud are nat expected (0 have material impact on the Group, They
in¢lude:

o DFIRS 5, Non-current dssets Held for Sale and Discontinwed Operations - Changes in
Methods of Disposal
The amendment is applied prospeciively and clarifies that changing from a disposal
through sale 10 a disposal through distribution to owners and vice-versa should not be
considered to be a new plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the eriginal plan,
Thers is, therefore, no interruption of the application of the requirements in FTFRS 5, The
amendment also clarifies that changing the disposal method does not change the date of
classification.

&« PYRY 7, Finaucial Instrumenits. Disclosures - Servicing Comtracts
PFRE 7 requires an entity to provide disclesures for any continuing invelvement in a
transferred asset that is derecognized in its entirety. The amendment clarifies that a
servicing contract that includes a fee can conshitute continuing invelvement in a financial
assel. An gntity must assess the nature of the fee and arrangement against the guidance in
PFRE 7 in order to assess whether the disclosures are required. The amendment is to be
applied such that the assessment of which servicing contracts constitute continuing
involvement will need to be done retrospectively. However, comparative disclosures are
not required to be provided for any period beginning before the annual period in which the
entity first applies the amendments.

» DFRS 7 - Applicability of the Amendments v PERS 7 ta Caondensed interim Financial
Statemenis
This amendment is applied retraspectively and clarifies that the disclosures on offsetting
of financial assels and (inancial liabilites are net required in the condensed interim
financial report unless they provide a signiticant update to the information reporied in the
most recent anmual repor,

s PAS 19, Emplovee Benefits - Regronal Market fssue Regarding Discount Rote
This amendment is applied prospectively and clarifics that market depth of high quality
corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is denominated,
rather than the country where the obligation is located, When there is ne deep marker far
high quality corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates must be used.

o PAN 3L, Mperim Fingneial Reporting  Disclosure of mformation "Efsewhere in the
Intevim Financial Report’
The amendment is applied retrospeactively and clarifies that the required interim
disclosures must either he in the interim financial statements or incorporated by cross-
reference between the interim financial statements and wherever they are included within
the greater interim financial report (e.g., in the management commentary ur risk repert}.

Effective January 1, 2018

s PFRS 9, Financial srrunients - Hedee Accounting omd amendments fo PFRES 9, PFRS 7 omd
PAS 39 (2013 version)
PFRS 9 (2013 version) already includes the third phase of the project to replace PAS 29 which
pertains to hedge atcounting. This vursion of PFRS 9 replacea the rules -bosed hedge
accounling model of PAS 39 with & more pringiples-based approach, Chanpes include
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replaving the rules-based hedge effectivencss test with an objectives-based test that focuses on
the ceonomic relationship between the hedged ftem and the hedging instrument, and the eifect
of credit risk on that economic relationship; allowing risk components to be designated as the
hedged item, not only for financiat items but also for non-financial items, provided that ti
risk component is separately identifiable and reliably measurable; and allowing the time valuc
of an option, the forward element of a fiwward contract and any foreign currency basis spread
to be excluded from the designation of & derivative insirument as the hedging instrument and
accounted for as costs of hedging, PFRS 9 also requires more extensive disclosures for hed ge
acoounting.

PFRS @ (2013 version) has no mandatory effective date. The mandatory effective date of
Tanuary 1, 2018 was eventually set when the final version of PFRS 9 was adopted by the
Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC), The adoption of the final version of PFRS Y,
hewever, is siill for approval by BOA.

The adoption of PFRS 9 s not expected to have any signiticanl impact on the Group's
conzgolidaied financial statements.

v  PERS 9, Finemelal Ismruments (2014 or final version)
In July 2014, the final version of PFRS 9, Finagucial Instruments, was issued. FFRS 9 reflects
all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces PAS 39, Financio Instrumenis:
Recogmition and Measurement, and all previous versions of PERS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and incasurument, impairment, and hedge accounting.
PFRS 9 {5 effective for annual periods beginning on or after Janvary 1, 2018, wilh early
application permitted. Retraspective application is required, bul comparative information is
not compulsory. Early application of previous versions of PFRS 9 is permitted il the date of
initial application is before February 1, 26115

The adaption of PFRS 9 is not expected to have any sighificant impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

Issued by JASD but not vet adopted by the FRNC

= International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 15, Revenue fraom Contracis with
ClHstnmers
IFRS 15 was ssued in May 2014 and establishes g new [Ive-siep mode] that will apply 1o
revenue arising Tram contracts with custemers, Under IFRS 15 revenue is recopnized at 2n
amount that reflects the consideration to which an cntity expects to be entitled in cxchange for
transferring gands or serviees to & customer, The pringiples in TFRS 15 provide a more
structurcd approach to measuring and recopnizing revenoe. The new revenue standard is
applicable to all eatitics and will supersede alt cumment revenue recognition requirements under
[FRS. Either a fall or mnditicd retrospective application is required for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2007 with carly adoption permitted. The Group is currently
assessing the effect of IFRY 15 and plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective
darte once adopted lacally.

The revised, amended and additional disclosures or accountitiy changes provided by the standards
and interpretations will be included in the consolidared financial statements in the year of
adoplion, if applicable.
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Summary of Significant Accounting and Financial Reporting Polieics

FPresentation of Financial Stateiments
The Group has elected to present all items of recognized income and expense in one sinple
statement of comprehensive income.

Cash and Cash Cquivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash in banks earn interest at fioating rates based on
daily bank deposit rate.

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investmants that are readily convertible 1 known
amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less and are subject 1o an insignificant
risk of change in valus.

Financial Instruments - Initial Recognition snd Subsequent Measurement

Dare of Recagnition

The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the consolidated statement of
financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Purchases or sales of financial assets thar require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by repulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade
date.

Initial Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments are recognized initiatly at fair valug. Directly attributabls iransaction costs
are ineluded in the initial measurement of all financial assets and Nnancial liabilities, except Lior
financial instruments at FVPL,

Financial aseets within the scope of PAS 39, Firancial fnstruments: Recognition and
Measurement, are classified inlo the following categorics: financial asscts at FYPL, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, and available-for-gale (AFS) financial assets or
as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. T'he
classtfication depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired and whether they
are quoted in an active market, Financial Habilities are classified as financial liabilities at FVPIL.,
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedpe, or as Inans and borrowings.
The Group determines the classification at initial recogmition and, where allowed and appropriate,
re-evaluates such designation at every financial reporting date.

Financtal instruments are classified as linhilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual agreement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument or a
compnonent that is a financial liability, are reported as expenses or income. Distributions to
holders of financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly to equity, net of any
related income tax benefits, '

'i'he Graup’s financial assets are in the nature of loans and receivables and AFS financial assets.
As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group has no financial assets at FYPL and HTM
investments or derivatives designated as hedging instruments in &n effective hedge,

The Group's [inancial liabilities are in the nature of loans and barrowings as at
December 31, 2014 and 20173
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Swbsequent Meastrement
The subsequent measurement of financial assers and liabilitics depends on their classification as
follows:

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivabies are nan-derivative financial assets with fixed or deterninable payments and
fixed maturities that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Group provides
money, goods or services directly (o a debtar with no intention of trading the receivables, After
initia] measuremeant, such financial assels are subsequently measured in the comsolidated statement
ol financial pasition at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) methud, less any
provision for impairment, Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and {ee or costs that are an integral part of EIR. The losses arising from
impairment are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income when the loans
and receivables are derccognized or impaired, as well as threugh the amortization procoss,

Loans and recetvabies ar: included in current assets if maturity is within twelve {12) months from
the financial reporting date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets,

The Group's cash and cash equivalents and receivables as at December 31, 2014 and 2013 are
classified under this category (sec Noles 5 and é),

AFS financial assets

AT'S finaneisl assets include investments in vquity and debt securities. Lquity investments
classified as AFS financial assets arc those which are neijther classified as held for trading nor
designated at FvPL. Debr securitics in this calegory are thase which are intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to needs for liguidity or in response to
changes in the market conditions.

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are subsequently measured al 1air value with
unrealized gains or losses recognized in the consolidated statement of camprehensive income in
the net unrealized gain on changes in fair value of AFS financial assets until the investment is
derecognized, at which time the cumulative gatn or loss is recognized in profit or inss, or
determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative loss is reclassified to the profit or loss
and removed from OCL

The Group evaluated its APS financial assets whether the ability and intention ta sell them in the
near term is still appropriate. When the Group is unabie 1o trade these financial assets due to
inactive markets and management’s intention to do so significantly changes in the foreseeable
future, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances.
Reclassification to loans and receivables is permitted when the financial assets meset the definition
of loans and receivables and the Group has the intent and ability to hold these assets for the
{oreseeable future or until maturity. Reclassification to the IITM category is permitied only when
the entity has the ability and intention to hold the financial asset accordingly.

For a tinancial assct reclassified out of the AFS {inancial assets catepory, any previous gain or loss
on that asset that has been recognized in equity is amortized to protit or loss over the remaining
life of the investment using the EIR, Anv difference between the new amortized cost and the
expected cash flows is also amortized aver the remaining life of the asset using the EIR. If the
tasd 1y subsequently determined 1o be impaired, thea the amount recorded o cioity 15 reclassified
o the preeefit o losa,

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, included under AFS financial assets are the Group's
investments in shares of stock and government bonds (see Note §).
I GARAGHTTOAVRAN
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Loans and borrowings

lssued financial instruments or their components which are not designated as at FVPL arc
classified as ioans and borrowinps, where the substance of the contraciua) arrangetnent resiilis in
the Group having an obligation vither to deliver cash or ancther financial asset to the halder, or to
satisly the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
assul for 3 fixed number of own cyuity shares.

The components of issued financial instruments that contain both liability and equity elements are
accounted for separately, with the cyuity component being assipned the residual amount after
deducting from the instrument as & whole, the amount separately determined as the fair value of
the liabilily component an the date of issue,

A fter initia] recognition, loans and borrowings are subsequently measured al amoniized cost using
the EIR method. Gains and nsses ane recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income when the habilities are derccognized as well as through the BIR amortization process,

Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on avguizition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization shall be included in other
charges in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Loans and borrowings are inchuded in current liabilities if settlement is to be made within twelve
{12} months from the financial reporting date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent
liabilities.

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, included in loans and borrowings are the Group’s accounts
payable and acerued expenses and dividends payable (see Note 12).

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilitics
Financial Assets
A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial assct or part of a group of similar

financial assets) is derecognized when:

«  the rights to receive casl 1lows from the assel have expired;

» the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset on has assumed an
obligalion to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either () the Uroup has transferved substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b} the Group has neither transferred nar retained substanlially all
lhe risks and rewards of the assat, but has transfarred contral of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to raceive cash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the nsks and rewards of the asset nor transferred contral
of the asset, the asset is recognized 1o the extent of the Group®s continuing involvement in the
assel, Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantes over the transferred asset is
measured at the Jower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Where continuing involventent takes the form of a wotten and/or purchased option {including a
cash-seitied aption or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group's
coatinuitg invalvernent s the amount of the rans{emed asset thal the Group may repurchase,
except that in the case nf a written mat aprlian (inchwling & cash-seitled oplion or similar provision)
on an assel measured at fair value, the extent of the Greup’s continuing invelvement is Yimied 1o
ihe lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.
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Financial Liabilities
A financial liability ix derecognized when the obligation under the lisbitity is discharped or
canecelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
difforent terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an cxchange or
madiflcation 15 treated a3 a derecognition of the original hability and the recognition of & new
liabtlity, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recopnized in the consolidated
statemnent of comprehensive income,

Impairment of Financial Assels
The (iraup assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or proup of {inancial assets iy
unpaired,

Logns and receivables

The Group 1irs) assesses whether objoective evidence of mpairment exists individually for
financini assels (hat are individnally sigmificant, or collectively for financial assets thal are not
ndividually significant. If the Group determines that no ohjective evidence of impairment exists
far individually assessed financial assets, whether significant or not, it includes the assetin a
group af [inancial assets with similar credit risk characteristivs and collectively assesscs for
impairment. Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of fiture cash flows for groups of
swch assets by being indicative of the deblors® ability to pay all anounts due according to the
contractual terms of the assets being cvaluated. Assets that are individually assessed far
impairnient and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in
a collective assessmend for fmpairment.

If there is ohjective evidence that an impairment loss on assets carried at amortized cost has been
ineurred, the arnount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows fexcluding futur: cxpected credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the Financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at imrial reeognition), The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
through the use ot an allowance account. 'The amount of impairment loss shall be recognized in
consoclidated profit or Joss.

' in 4 subsequent period, the amount of the impairment Joss decreases and the decreasc can be
related objectively to an event sceurring after the impairment was recognized, the previousiy
recupnized impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not
cxceed its amortized cost at the reversal date. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is
recopnized in consolidated statement of comprehensive incume.

In rclation to receivables, a provision for impairment is made when there is objective evidence
{snch us the probability of nsolveney or significant financial difficulties of the debtor) that the
(iroup will not be able o collect all of the amounts due under the original terms of the invoice.
1'he earrying amount of the recetvahle is reduced through the use of an allowance acecount.
Impaired reeeivables are derecognized when they are assessed as uncolkectible,
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Assetv carried at cost

1f there Is abjective evidence of impainnent foss on an unquoted equily insirument that is not
carricd at [air value, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such an unguoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the assel’s carrving amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted al the
current market rate of return for 2 similar financial asset.

AFS financial assets
For ATS financial assets, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

In cese nf equity investments classified as AFS financizgl assets, this would include a significam or
prolonged decline tn the fair value of the investments below its cost. The determination of what is
“sipnificant™ or “prolonged” requires judpment. The Group treats “sipnificant™ as 20% or inere
ared “prolonged™ as prealer than 12 months for quoted coquity sceuritice. Where there (s evidenge
of impairment, the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the acqguisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income is removed from OCI and recognized in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment lagge’ on equity investments are not reversed through peofit or logs. Inereases in tair
value after impairment arg recopnized directly in equity.

In the case of debt instruments classificd as AFS Lnancial asscts, impainment s assessed based on
the same criteria as financial assets carried al amortized cost. Inlerest continues 10 be accrued al
the original effective interest rate on the reduced carrying amount of the asset and is recorded as 2
contponent of “Crther income™ account in the consclidated statement of comprehensive income.
If, subsequently, the fair value of a dabt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event nccurring after the impairment loss was recognized in consolidated profit or
losg, ihe impairment loss i reversed through consolidated statement of comprehensive mcome.

Fair ¥alue Measurement
The Group measures AFS financial assets and investment property, at fair value at each end of

reporling perivd.

I'air value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants al the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the assel or transier the
fiability takes piace either:

s in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
o ip the absence of 4 principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
ltability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessibie (o by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants

wonld use when pricing the asser or liability, assuming that market parlicipants act in their
econnimic hest interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-(inancial asset takes into aceount a market participant's ability
to generate ¢eonoimic benefils by using the asset in its highest and best vse or by selling it to
ancthur markel participant that would use the asset in its highest and bast vsi.
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The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in Lthe circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant chservable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inpuls.

All assets and liabilities for which fair valug is measured or disclosed in the finaneial statements
are categorized within the fair value hicrarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
inpmt that is signiticant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

»  Level | - Ouoted {unadjusted) marke! prices in active markets {or identical assets or
liahilities

» Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest bevel input that is signilicant to the
fair value measurement iz directly or indircaly observable

+ Level 3 - Valuation technigues for which the lawest level inpuot that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial stalements on a recurring
basis, the Group detarmines whether ransfers have ovcurred between Levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing catsgorization {based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as & whole) at the end of each reporting period.

An analysis of the fair values ol AFS Mnancial assets and investment property and further details
az 10 how they are measured arc provided in Notes 9 and 23,

OiTselting of Financial Instruments

Financial assels and financial liabilities are offset and the net anount reparted in the consolidated
statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset

the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or ta realize the assct and
setle the liability simultanesusly. This is not generally the case with master netting apreements,

and the related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the consalidated statement of financial
position,

Prepayviments and (hther Current Assets

Prepuyments

Prepayments are expenses paid in advance and recorded as asset before they are utilized, This
aceount comgprises prepaid rentals and insurance premiums and other prepaid items. The prepaid
rentals and insurance premiumes and other prepaid items are apportioned over the period covered
by the payment and charged 1o the appropriate accounts in profit or loss when incurred.
I'repayments that are expected o be realized for no more than 12 months after the reporting peried
are classified as current assels vlherwise, these are classified as other noncurrent assets.

Inpu Vatued-added Tox (VAT)

Eevenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are recognized net of the amount of VAT, except where
the VAT incurred om a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case the VA'l' is recognized as part of the cost of acquisitinn of the asset or as
part of the expense item as applicable.

VAT is stated al 12% of the applicable purchase cosi of goods or services, nel of oulpun lax
liabilitics, The net amount of VAT recoverable from or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as paut of *Prepayments and other current assets™ or “Accounts pavable and accrued
expenses,” respectively, in the consolidated statement of fmancial pesition,
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Investment Propertics

Investment prapertics, consisting of parcels of land owned by the Group, are measured initially af
cost, including fransaction costs, Subssquent to initial recognition, investment propertics urc
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the reporting date, Gains or losses arising
tram changes in the fxir values of investment properties are included in consetidated profit or loss
in the year in which they arise.

Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been dizposed of or when the
invustment pruperty is permanently withdrawn from use and no futuie cconomic benefit is
cxpecled [rom its disposal. Any gains or losses from derecognition of an investment property are
recognized in consolidated profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

Deferred Charges and Project eveloprent Cosls

All exploration and evaluation costs incurred in conncetion with the participation of the Group in
the determination of technical feasibifity and assessment of commercial viability of an identified

resource are capitalized and accounted fur under the “successful efforts method” [determined on

the basis of each Service Contract (S8C)/Geophysical Survey and Exploration Contract (GSEC)).

T'hase costs include materials and fuel used, surveying costs, drilling costs and payments made i
contractons.

Cince the legal right to explore has been acquired, costs directly associated with an exploration and
evglugticm are capilalized and amortized at the start of commercial operations. All such
capitalized costs are subject 1o technical, commercial and management review, as well as review
tor indicators of impairment at least once a year. This is to confirm the continued intent to
develop or othirwise exiract value from the discovery. When an SC is permanently abandoned,
all yelated capitalized exploration costs are written-off. SCs are considered parmanently
abandoned if the SCs have expired andfor if there are no definite plans for further exploration
and/or development.,

Property and ipment
Property snd equipment, other than office condaminium, are carried at cast less accumiilated
depreciation and amortization and any impairment in value.

Office condominium is carried at revalued amount less depreciation and any impairment in value
charged subsequent to the date of the revaluation. Valuations are performed frequently enough 1o
ensure that the fair value of revalued asset does not differ materially from its canying amount,

Any revaluation increment is credited to the “Revaluetion increment in office condominium™
account in the equity section of the consolidated statements of financial position, net of the related
defarred income tax liability. An annual transfer from the “Revaluation increment in oftice
condominium’ acconnt to retained earnings (deficit) is made for the ditference between the
depreciation bazed on the revalued carrying amonnt of the asset and the depreciation based on the
asser’s oripinal eost. Additonally, accumulated depreciation at the revaluation date is eliminated
against the pross carrying amounl of the assel and the nel amount is restated to the revalued
amounl of the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation increment relating to the particular assgt sold
is transferred (o retained eamings (deficit).,

The initizl ensts of property and cguipment consist of their purchase price and any direetly
attributable costs of bringing the assets to their working condition and focation for their infended
use. Lxpenditures incurred after the property and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and mainienanee costs, are recognized in profil or loss in dhe year io which costs are
ineurTed,
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In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an
increase in future ceonomic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item af property
and equipment heyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are
capitalized as an additional cost of property and equipment. Major maintenance and major
overhaul easts that are capitalized ag part of property and equipment are depraciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives, typically the period until the next major
mamenance or inspection.

Depreciation and amortization is compated using the straighi-ling method to allocate the relatad
assels’ cost to their estimated usefl lives, The annual rates of depreciation for each category are
based on the following useful lives of relacd assets;

Wumber of Years

Office condominium 15
Difice equipment, furmiture and fixtures 3
Building and leasehold improvements 15
Transportation equipment 5

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the term of the lease ar estimated uselul life of
fifteen (15) years, whichever is shorter,

The assets” estimated useful lives and depreciation and asmortization method are reviewsd
periodically to ensure that these are consistent with the expected patiern of economie henelits from

the items of propenty and equipment.

Deprecialion and amaortization of property and equipment begins when it becomes available for
use, 1.8, when it is in the location and condition necessary far it to be capahle of operating in the
manner intended by management.

Depreciation ceases when assets are fully depreciated or at earlicr of the date (hat line item is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale) in
accordance with PFRS 5, Noncurrent Assets Held for Sale and Disconiinued Opevations, and the
date the ilem is derecognizad.

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, their cost, aecummlated depreciation and
amortization and any allowance for impairment loss are eliminated from the accounts and any gain
or loss resulting from their disposal i included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.

An itemn of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposai or when no fiture economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain ot loss arising on
derecagnition of the asset {caleulated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carryimg amaunt of the item} is included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive ingome in

the year the item is derecognized.

Fully-depreciated assets are retained in the acecunts until they are no longer in use and no further
depreciation is charged to operations.
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Impaipment of Nonfinancial Assels
I'voperty and Eguipment and Noncurrent Assets

The Group assesses al cach financial reportimg date whether there is an indicaticn that an asset
may be impaired. If any such indicatinn exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated
recoverahle amounis, (he assets or CGU are written down to their estimated recoverable amounis.
The cstimated recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of the fair value less cost to sell and
value in use. The fair value less cost 1o sell is the amount abtainable from the sale of an asset in
an arm's-length transaction less the costs of disposal while value in use is the present value of
estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from iis
disposal at the end of its wseful life, In assassing valug in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate thay reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks speeific to the asset. For an asset that does
not gencrate largely independent cash inflows, the estimated recoverable amount is determined for
the CGU to which the asset belongs, Impairment lossus of continuing operations are recognized in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in those expensce categories consistent with
the fupction of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made al cach financial reporting datc whether therc is any indication that
previgusly recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. 1f such
indication exista, the recoverable amount 13 estimated, & previously recognized impairment loss is
reversed by a credit to current operations (unless the assct is carried at a revalued amount in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is eredited to the revaluation increment of the same asset)
to the extent that it does not restate the asset to a carrying amount in excess of what would have
been determined {net of any accumulated depreciation) had no impairnent loss been recognized
for the asset in prior vears, Such reversal is recognized in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income unless the assct is carried at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is
treated as a revaluation increase. Afler such reversal, the amortization charge is adjusted in future
neriods 1o allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, iess any residual value, on systematic basis
over its remaining useful life.

Frepayments and Other Currenf dysels

‘The Group provides provision for impairment losscs on nonfinancial prepayments and other
current assets whern they can no longer be realized, 7le amounts and timing of recorded expenses
for any perind would differ if the Group made different judgments or utilized different estimates,
An ingTease in provision for impaimment losses would increase recorded expenses and decrease
prepayments and other coment and noncurtent assets.

Recovery of impairment losses recognized in priur years is recorded when there 1s an indication
that the impairment losscs recognized for the asset no longer exist or have decreased. The
recavery 15 rccorded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. However, (he
increased carrying amount of an asset due to a recovery of an impairment loys 15 recogmized w the
extent it does not exceed (he carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
depreciation and amorlization) bad no impairment loss baen recopnized for that asset in priar
years,

Capital Stock and Additiomal Paid-in Capital
Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued and outstanding. When the Group
issuew ol e than one class of stock, a separate accound is maintained far each class of stock and

rnumber of Shares ssued and uutstanding.

Whew the shares are sold a1 a premium, the differcmee between the procecds and the par value is
credited 1o the “Additional paid-in capital” aceount, When shares are issued for a comsideration
other than cash, the proceeds are measured by the fair value of the consideration received. In case

T T



.20 -

the shares are issued to exlinguish or settie the Hability of the Group, the shares shall be measured
cither at the: fair value of the shares issusd or fair value of the liability seltled, whichever is more
reliabily determinable.

Depusit for Fulure Stoe, ;

This perdaing o the amount of cash and advances from stockholders as payment for future
issusnce of stocks, The Group classifies a deposit for future stock subscription as an equity
instrument if it satisfies all of the following elements:

+ the unissued authorized capital stock of the entity is insufficient to cover the amount of shares
indicated in the contract;

s there is Board of Directors” approvel on the proposed increase in authorized capital stock (for
which a deposit was received by the corporation);

= there is stockholders” approval of said proposed increase; and

* ihe application for the approval of the proposed increase has been filed with the SEC.

If any or all of the foregoing elements are not present, the deposit for future stoek subseription
shall be recognized as a liability.

Retai :

The amount included in retained earnings includes profit (loss) attributable to the Parent
Company's stockholders and reduced by dividends. Dividends are recognized as a liability and
deducted from equity when they are approved by the Parent Company’s BOD. Dividends for the
pericd that are approved after the end of the financial reporting date are dealt with as an event after
the financial reporting period. Retained earnings may also inciude the effect of changes in
accounting policy as may be required by the accounting standard’s transitional provisions.

Other Comprehensive Income {Loss)

Other comprehensive income (loss) comprises jtems of incomes and expense (incloding iterms
previvusly presented under the consolidated statement of changes in equity) that are not
recognized in the consolidated statement of income for the year in accordance with PFRS.

Dasic/Tijuted Bamings

Basic Earnings Per Share

Rasic EPS amounts arc calculated by dividing the nel income atiributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Parent Company by the weighted averape number ol ordinary shares outstanding,
after giving retroactive effect for any stock dividends, stock splits or reverse stock splits during the
year,

Difwted EPS

Chluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the net incoms attribulable 1o ordinsry couity
holders of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of ordinary sharcs eutsianding,
adjusted for any stock dividends declared during the year plus weighted average nomber of
ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive ordinary shares inte
ordinary shares, excluding treasury shares.

Bevenue Recopnifion

Hevenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the enterprise and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably,
regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenuc is measnred at the fair value of the
consideration received, net of discounts, The Growp assesses iis revenue aTangements against
specilte criteria in order 1o determing 3t it is acting as a principe! or agent. The following specilic

recognition criteria must alse be met before revenue 15 recognized:
: ; KR
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Inierest income
Interest income is recognized as the interest accrues, taking into account the cifective yvield on the
asset,

Dividend income
Ihvidend income is recopnized when the Group’s right ta receive payment is established.

fieneral and Administralive Expenses

General and administrative expenses are decreases in economic benetits during the aceounting
periad in the form of outllows or occurrences of liabilities that result in decruases in equity, other
than thnse relating to distributions to equity participents. Cienerat and administrative expenses are
generally recognized when the services are used or the expense arises while interest expenses are
acerued in the appropriate financial reporting date.

l.eages

Determinution of Whether an Avvangement Contains a Lease

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or containg a lease is based on (he subslance of
the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fitlfillment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the
asset.

A reassessment is made afier inceplion of the lease only if one of the fallowing applics:

a. ‘I'here is a chanpe in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the armangement;

b. A renewal option is exercised or exiension granted, unless that term of the renewal or
extension was inilally included in the lease term,

¢. There ig a change in the determination of whether fulfiilment is dependent on a specificd
asget:or

d. Thers is a substantial chanpe to the asset,

Where a resssessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a3, (¢) or (d) above, and at the
date of renewal or exilension period for scanario (b).

{Iperating feases

Ciperating lcases represent those leases under which substantially all risks and rewards of
awnership of the leased assets remains with the lessors. Noncancellable operating lease payments
are recoghized under “General and administralive expenses™ in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on & straight-line basis over the lease term.

Finance Legsey

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownerstup of the leased item, are capitalized at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the
lcased asset or, i lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are
apportioned between [inance charges and the reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a
canstant periadic mte of interest an the remaining balance of the liability. Lease receivables are
based on the present value of contractual cash flows discounted at 1narket adjusted rates. Finsnce
income and costs are reflected in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Capitalivaed leased assels are deprecialed over the shorter of the estimated vseful life of the azset
and the lease term i there iz no reasonable certainty that the Group will oblain cwnership of the

asset by the end of the lease terin.
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Retirement Benefits Costs

The net retirement benefits fiability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the retirement
benefit obligation at the end of the financial reporting date reduced by the fair value of plan assets
(if any), adjusted for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. The
asset ceiling is the present value of any economic benefits availabla in the form of refunds from
the plan or reductions in firture contributions to the plan.

The cost of providing benefits under the retirement benefit plans is actusrially determined using
the projected unit credit method. -

Retirement benefit costs comprise the following:

s Service cout

= Net interest on the net retivement henefit linbility or asset
s Remeasurements of net retirement benefit lability or asset

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-
routine settlements are recognized as expense in profit or loss. Past service costs are recognized
when plan amendmeni or curtailment occurs. These amounts are calculaied periodically by
independent qualified actuaries.

Wet interest on the net retiremeni benefit liability or assel is the change during the period in the net
retirement benefil Hability or asset that arises from the passape of time which is determined by
applying the discount rale based on government bonds (o the net retirement benefit liability or
asset. Met interest on the net retirement benefit liability or assel is recognized as expense or
income in consolidated profil or loss,

Femeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, retum on plan asscls and any change in
the elleet of the aszel ceiling (excluding net interest on reticement benefit lability) are recopnized
immediately in OCT [ the peried in which they arise, Remeasurcments are nat reclassiticd to
profil or loss in subscquent periods. Remeasurements recognized in OCI afer the initial adoption
of Revised PAS 19 are nol closed to relained earnings accounl, These ane retained in OCI until
{ult sertlement of the Liability.

Plan assets are assels that are held by a long-lerm employee benefit fund or qualilying insoranee
policies, Tlan assels are not available (o the creditors of the Growp, nor ean they be paid directly
t2 the Group. Fair value of plan assels is based on markel price information, When no market
price is available, the fair value of plan asscts is estimated by diseounting expected future cash
flows using a discount rate that reflects bath the risk assnciated with the plan assets and the
maturity or expected disposal dale of these assets (o, if they have no maturity, the expected period
until the settlement of the related oblipations). If the fair value of the plan assets is higher than the
present value of the retirement benefil obligation, 1he incasurement ot the resulting retirentent
benefit asset is Hmited to the present value of ceonomic benefits availahle in the form of refunds
from the plan or reductions in fulure contribulions to the plan.

The Group's right to be reimbursed ol some ur all of the expenditare required to settle a retirement
benefit obligation is recopnivzed as a scparate asset at fair value when and only when
reimhbuersement is virually certain,

fermination Benefit
Termination benohits sre vmmployee benefite provided in exchange for the termination of an

emploves's employment as a resull of either an entity’s decision 10 terminate an employec’s
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cmployment before the normal retirement date or an employee’s decision to accept an offer of
benelits in exchange for the termination of smployment.

A liahility and expense for a termination benefit is recognized at the earlier of when the entity can
o lweger withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the entity recognizes related restructuring
costs. [ntial recognition and subsequent changes to termination benefits are measured in
accardunce with (he nature of the employee benefit, as either post-employment benefits, short-
term employee bunelits, or other long-term employee benefits.

Employee Leqve Entitlement

Employee entitlements 10 annual leave are recognized as a liability when they are accried to the
employeas, The undiscounted liability for leave sxpected to be settled whally befare twelve {12)
menths after the end of the financial reporting peried is recognized for services rendered by
vmployess up to the end of the reporting period.

Farcipn Currency Tr, igns

Fuorciym currency transactions are recorded in Philippine Peso by applying to the foreign curreney
amount the exchange rate between the Philippine Peso and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction. Toreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated to
I'hilippine peso using the prevailing exchange rates at the end of the reporting pericd. Exchange
rite differences arising from the settlement of monetary items at rates different from those at
which they were initially recorded during the year are credited or charged to current operations.
MNonmuonelary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
lranslated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

Income Taxed

Current Incame Feox

Current ineemne lax assels and liabililes for the current and prior periods are measured at the
amcunt expected W be recovered from or paid 1o the axation authoritics. The tax rates and (ax
laws used to compute the amount are those that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
financial reporting date.

Current income tay relating to items recognized direerly in the consolidared statement of chianges
in equity is recognized in equity and not in profit or foss, Management periodically evaluates
pasitions taken in the tax returns with respect to sittationg in which applicahle tax regulatians are
suhject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred income tax is pravided, nsing the batance sheet liabiiity methnd, on all temparary
differcnces at the financial reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deformed ineame tax habilities are recognized
for al} 1axable temporary difTercnoes, excepl:

¢ where the deferred incorne tax lability arives from the isitial recognition of geodwill or of an
assel or liability in g transaction thal 1s not a business eombination and, at the time nof the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profil nor taxable income or Loss,

s in respect of taxable temperary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associotes and interasts in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the lemporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse

in the foresesable future.
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Dilerred imcome lax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward
benefits of unused tax credits from excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over the regular
corpurate income fax (RCIT) and unused net operating loss cany-over (N(1L.COY, 10 the extend
that it is probably that sufficient future taxable profits will be available against which the
deductible ternporary differences and the carryforward benefits of unused tax eredits and unused
tax losses can be wlilized, except;

s where the deterred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business comhination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting income nar taxable income or
logs,

o in respect of deductibie ternpeorary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
assoctates and interests in joint venlures, deferred incoms tax assets are recognizad only to the
extent thar it is probable that the lemporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxabte income will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each financial reporting date and
recuced (o the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits will by
available to allow zl] or part of the deferred income tax assets to he utilized. Unrecopnized
deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each financial reporting date and are recognizcd 1o the
vatent that it has become probable that sufficient future taxable profits witl be available o allow
the deferred income tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and fiabilities are measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to
the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rate and tax laws
thal have been enacted or substantively enacted at the financial reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax habiliics arc offset if a legally enlorceable right exisis 1o set
off chrrent tax assets against current income tay liabilities and the deferred taxes relale o the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Segpment Information
The Group considers investment holding and the energy and oil and gas exploration as its primary

activities. The Group has no geographical segmentation as the Group’s operating business
segments are neither organized nor managed by pengraphical segment.

Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recagnized when the Group has a present olligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources cmbodying ceonamic benelils will
be required to settle the ohligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the ampunt of the

nbligation.

Crmtingeneies
Cnntingent liabilities are eat recognized inthe consolidated financial statements. These are

disclosed unless the possibality of an autflow of ccontmic benefits is remote. Cantingent assety
are nol recognized in the consoelidated financial statements but disclnsed when an intlow of

economic benetit s probable,
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Events After the Heporting Date

Post year-end cvents thatl previde additional information about the Group’s position at the end of
the reparting period {adjustineg events) are rellected in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. Paost year-end cvents that arc not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statcinents when material.

Significant Accounfing Judgments and Estimates

The proparation of the consolidated financial statements in compliance with FFRS requires
mangfement o make judgments and estimates that affect the amonnts reparted in the consnlidated
financial statements. The judgments and estimates used in the consolidated financial statements
are basced upon management’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the
cansolidated tinancial statements. Fulure svenis may occur which can cause the assumptions used
in arrivinp 4l those judpgments and estimates to change. The effects of the chanpes will be
refleeted in the consulidaled financial statements as they become reasonably determinable.

Accounting judgiments and cstirnales are continnally evaluated based on historical experiance and
ather factors, including expeclalions of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
CHEWMATANGCE,

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the {ollowing
judgments, apart from those invalving cstimations, which have the most signiticant effect on
amounts recopnizad in the consolidated financial statements:

Keserves estimation

The Group estimates its commercial reserves and resources bascd on infornmation cumpiled by
appropriately qualified persons relating to the geological and technical data oo the size, depth,
shape and prade of the hydrocarbon body and saitable production lechnigues and recovery rates,

Determination of the (Froup s functional currency

Based on the economic substance of the underlying cireumstances relevant ta the (iroup, the
functional currency has been determimed 1o be the Philippine Peso. 1t is the currency that mainly
inftuences the operations of the Group.

Classificarion of financial instrienens

The Group classifies a financial instrument. or its compenent, on initial recognition as & financial
asset, liability or equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangement and the definitions of a financial assat, liability or equity instrument. The substance
of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form, governs its classification in the consolidated
statements of financial position.

Estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the sstimates are revised if the
revisions affect only that periad, or in the period of the revision and fitture periods if the revision
aflects balh surrent and Tulure periods.

The key assumptions conceming the tuture and other key sources of estiniation uncertainty at the

reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of asset and liabilities within the next financial vear are discussed below:
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Impairment of AFS finccial assets

The Group freats AFS financial assets as impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decling in the fair value below its cost or where other objective evidence of impainment exists.
The: determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged™ requires judgment. The Group treaty
“significant” as 24% or more of the cost and “prolonged” as greater than 12 months for quoted
cepuity securities,

Allowance for impairtnent on unguoted investment in shares of stock amounted to #4,0041,435 as
at December 37, 2014 and 2013 (se¢ Note 8).

The earrying value of the Group’s AFS financial assets amounted to 2364,298,764 and
£151,425,196 as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note &).

Extimation of alfowance fur impairment of receivables

The: Group reviews its receivables at esch reporting date 1o assess the adequacy of the allowance
for doubtfui accounts, i particular, judgrment by management is required in the estimation of the
armount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of alowance required. Such
estimates are based on factors such as, but not limited to, the length of the Group’s relationship
with the cuslomer, customer’s payment behavior and other keeown market factors.

The carrying value of reeeivables, net of allowance for impairment of accounis receivable
amounting to £2,549 217 and P2,732,947 as at Decembar 31, 2014 and 2013, amognicd 1o
#1,644,289 and 83,031,899 as a1 December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively {sce Nole 6).

Estimation af useful lives of properiy and equipment

The Group estimates the uscful lives of their property and equipment based on the period over
which the assets are expeeted to be available for use. The Group annually reviews the estimated
useful lives of praperty and cquipment based on facfors that include asset utilization, intcmal
technical evaluation, technolopical chanpges, environmental and anticipated use of the assets. Itis
possible that future resuhs of vperation could be materially affected by changes in these catimales
brought about by changes in factors mentioned, A reduction in the estimated pseful lives af
property and equipment would increase depreciation expense and decrease nencurrent assets. The
depreciation expense recognized during 2014, 2013 and 2012 amounted to #3,486,723,
#1.204,504 and P3,642, 532, respectively (see Note 18).

Impoirment af property and equipment

The Group assesses impairment on property and equipment recorded at cost whenever events ar
changes i cireumstances indicaty that the carrving amount of these assets may not be recoveralle.
The factors that the Group considers important which could lrigger an impairment review include
the following:

s gipnificant underperformance relative to expected hisiorical or prejected future operating
resulis:

» significant changes in the manter of use of the acyuired assets or the strategy for overall
husiness; and

+ signifleanl negative industry or economic trends.

A at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group assessed that there were no impainnent indicatats
an its property and equipment. The carrying value of properly and cquipment, net of accumated
depreciation and amortization ameunted to P215,145,742 and 27859819 4z af

December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note 11),
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impuirment and write-qff of deferved charges and projeci development costs

The Group assesses impairment on deferred charges when facts and circumstances suggest that the
carrying amount of the asset may exceed i1s recaverable amount. 1Inkil the Group has sulficient
data to determine lechnical feasibility and commercial viability, deferved charges needl not be
assessed for impairment.

Facts and circumstances that would require an impairment assessment as set forth in PFRS 6,
Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Kesources, are as fallows:

+ the peried for which the Group has the right 10 explore it the specific area has expired or will
expire in the near future and is not expecied to be renewed;

s substantive expenditure on further exploration for and evaluation of mincral resourees in the
specific area is neither budgeted nar planned;

« cxploration for and evaluation of mineral resources in the specific area have not led to the
discovery of commercially viable quantities of mineral resources and the entity has decided to
discontinue such activities in the specific area; and

»  sufficient data exist to indicate that, althangh a development in the specific arca is likely o
proceed, the camyimg amount of the exploration snd evaluation asset is unlikely (o be
recovered in full from suceessful develonment or by sale.

For deferred charges, impairment is recognized when & SC where the Group has participating
interest is permanently abandoned. Foture events could cavse the Group to conclude that these
assets are impaired.

‘There was na provision for impairment Inss on deferred charges and project development costs in
2014 and 2013 and 2012,

The carrying amount of deferred charpes, net of allowance for impairment loss amounting to
B45,742,635 as at December 31, 2014 and 2813, amounted ta #54 622 671 and 46,248 903 as at
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note 10).

The carrying amount of project development costs amounted to #151,979,511 and #39.2806,17Y as
ar December 31, 26014 and 2013, respectively {sec Note 4),

Realizability of deferred income tax assels

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all temporary deductible differences to the extent
that it is probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available 1o allew all or part of the
deferred income tax assets to be utilized. The Group’s recognized deferred imcome tax assels
amounted to B14,136,766 and B2,076,212, as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respeactively.

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group has temporary difference on NOLCO, excess
MOCIT over RCIT, preoperating expenses and allowance for impairnient logses amounting 1o
BI3A,911,137 and B178,084,030, respectively, for which no deferred income tax assel was
recognized hecanse it is mare likely than nat that the canryforward benefit will not be realized on
or price to its expiration (see Note 200

Estimation of fair value of unguoted equiny secnrities classified a5 AFS finemcial assets
Management belisves that while the range of reasonable fair value cslimates is signiticant, the
probabilitics of Lhe various estimates cannot be reasonahily assessed given the unguoted nature of
these cguily investments. As g resilt, the Geowupr carries these financial assets at cost less any
impairment in valuc. As of December 21, 20014 and 2013, vnguoted eguity securities amounied 1o
P135,148 and #54,048,364, respectively. Allowance for impairment losses on AFS financial
assets amounted to 84,090,135 as at December 31, 2014 and 2013 {sce Mot 8,
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Estimation of retirement bengfits

The cost of defined benefit pension plans as wetl as the present valug of the pension obligation is
determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation invalves making various
assumptions. These include the determination of the discount rates, future salary increascs,
mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the
underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, detined benefit obligations arc highly sensitive
to changes in these assumptions. The assumptions made by the Group resulted in acerucd
retirement benefits amounting to ¥11,913,164 and £7,967,637 as at December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively (see Note 193,

Iti determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the intercst rates of
government bonds that are denominated in the curreney in which the benefits will be paid, with
extrapalated maturities corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit obligation.
The mortaliy rate is hased on pubiicly available mortality tables tor the specific country and is
moditfied accardingly with estimates of martality improvements, Future salary increases and
pension increnses are based on expected future inflation rates for the speeific country,

Determinaiion of faiv value of investrnent properiies

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market tor similar lease and other
conttacts. In the absence of such information, the Group determines the amount within a ranpe of’
reasanahble fair vaiue estimates. In making its judgment, the Group considers information trom
variety of sources including:

= current prices in an active market for properties of different nature, condition or location
for subject to different lease or other contracts), adjusted 1o reflect those differences;

«  recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, with adjustments to reflect any
changes in econanie conditions since the date of the transactions that cccorred at those prices;
and

e discounied cash Tlow projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows, derived
fromn the lerms of any existing tease and other contracts and (where possible) from external
evidence such as current market rents for similar properties in the same location and condition
and using diseount rates thet reflect current market assessments of the uncerainty in the
amounl and timing of the cash flows,

The Group recognized a fair value adjustment on its investments properties amounting to
F2,824,044, #2,155,000, and P73,393.045 tn 20014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The fair value
adjustmnents an its investment properties are based on the latest appraisa! reports in 2412 for the
tand in Balinao, Pangasinan, San Fabian, Pangesinan and Tanay, Rizal, and latest appraisal report
in 2013 for the fand in Gutalae, Zamboanga del Nonte. The fair value of the Group’s investmemt
praperties amointed to B203 458, 387 and $#200,634,347 as at December 31, 2014 and 2013,

respectively (sce Note 8,
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4, Status of Investments and Management's Outlock

Sale of BPMI

O April 3, 2006, the Parent Company entered into a Sale and Purchase Agreement (SPA)
covering the sale of the entire interest in its wholly owned subsidiary, Basic Petroleum &
Mincrals, Ine. {BI'MI) to Forum Energy PLC (FCP), for a total consideration of US$L 7,000,000,
Q[ this amount, USF5,000,000 was in cash and FEP shares and US$12,000,000 was payahle upon
FEP's wtilization of the historical cost recoveries of BPMI and upon oil production by FEP in
excess of 5,420,000 barrels. By April, 2007, the Parent Company received full payment and
delivery of the first tranche of U335,000,000. The amount of USE 0,000,000 was due upon
FEI"'s utilization of the historical cost recovery accounts of BPMI and the amount aof
L'S$2,000,000 was due, in staggered basis, upon production of 5,240,000 barrels of 0il in the
service conlracls that are part of the sale of BPML

In 2008, the Farent Company declared TGP in default and the receivables from FEP were the
subject of arbitration proceedings between the Parent Company and FEF. On June 14, 2012, the
Ad-Hoc Arbitration Tribunal rendered its decision in faver of the Parent Company and awarded
payment by Forum of the balance of the share of the Parent Company in the historical cost
recoveries received by Forum on the oil assets sold to Forum under the SPA and directed the
parties to cause the election of the Parent Company’s nominee to FEP's Board until full payment
of FEP's obligations to the 'arent Company. Even prior to the arbitration award, the parties has
been in continuing discussions on a global settlement on all issues pertaining to the SPA, as the
arbitration procesdings coversd only the Parent Company’s claim for its share in historical cost
recoveries and a global settlement would be beneficial to both parties. Subsequently, the parties
gntered into a Compromise Agreement covering settlement of the aforementioned award by the
Ad-Hoc Arbitration Tribunal in favor of the Parend Company and other claims under the STA
Under the agreement, Forum will pay the Parent Company an aggregale amount of B186,567 854
(554,400,000 and the Parent Company agreed not fo nominate a representative to the FEP
Board. Prior to the finalization of settlement between the Farent Company and Furum, the latter
already paid '38,367,996 to (he Parent Company as parl of the salc of BEMIL As at

December 31, 2013, FEDP had settled all ity obligations to the Parenl Company.

The wal settbement amount due W the Farent Company of B224,955,850 waz recorded in 2012 as
“Tnesme rom previous sale of BPMI™ inthe consolidated statement of eomprehensive ineome.
The remaining balance of the settlement procecds amounted (o #47,050,000 (LIS$1,000,000) as a1
Diegember 31, 20012, which amount was tully paid by FEP as at December 31, 2073,

(01l Service Contracts {SCx}

The Parent Company is a parly, topether with other companies, to SC 47 (Offshore Mindoro) and
SC 53 (Onshore Mindoro) with the Philippine Governent, through the Department of Energy
{DOE), for the exploration, development and exploitation of the contract areas situated in offshore

and enshore Mindoro, respectively.

SC 47 (Ollshore Mindoro)

SC 47 was awarded by the DOE on January 10, 2003 to PNOC Exploration Corparation {PNOC
I2C} and Petronas Carigali (Pelronas). Upon Betronas® withdrawal in January 2008, PNOC-EC
inierest became 97% with Petroeneryry Resources Corporation at 2% and the Parent Company at

1%,

5C 47 covers originally 14,667 sq. km and is located within the Northwest Palawan bMicro-
Continental Block (INFMCRY. The WPMOR is the only area in the Philippines wheare thera i5 ol
and pas and includes the Nida (ilfield, Matinloc Qilfield and the Malampaya Gasfield, all in the
ttorthwest Palawan area. SC 47 has been the stle of the {irst significant oil discovery outside the
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proven petraleum provinee of offshore northwest Palswan, PNOC-EC dnilled the Manipuin-2
well on the island of Maniguin in 1994, This well flowed sub-commersial quantities of oii and
proved the existence of a valid petrolenm system in the arca.

In 2009, the Parent Company along with 1t partners, continued exploration effarts in this service
contract. The Department of Energy approved the setsmic program comimitment under sub-phase
2 {January 2008 to January 2010). The 21 seismic survey was carried out by CG(F Vernitas from
August 19-29, 2009 covering a total of 1,091.60 kms at a eost of LiS$637,417. {n

Auvgust 14, 2009, the DOE approved the relinguishment of 25% of the ariginal ares of the servige
contract, reducing the ares to 1,098,000 hectares, where the islands of Caluye, Sibay and Semirara
were retained.

Previous work programs involved the processing and mterpretation of the seismie date which have
resulted in the identification of some leads and prospects and the conduct of the technical
evaluation of data scquired from the seismic program. Early this year, PNOC-EC requested the
Department of Energy for the approval of its proposed work program for Sub-Fhase 3 to cover o
periad of three {3) vears and which will involve a 2-vear peological and geophysical work and the
drilling of one exploration well on the third and final year. Estimated cost for this program is
US$70,000,000. As at March 26, 2015, the Department of Energy has not advised PNOC-EC af
its decision on the said proposed work program. The Parent Company has a 1% interest in this
service contract.

5O 53 {Cnshore Mindoro)

SC 53 was awarded by the DOE on July 8, 2005, for a ten years exploration period. It covers
6,600 5q. km. of the onshore areas of Mindare Island which is within the North Palawan Micro-
Continental Block. Past exploration efforts in SC 53 included the acquisition of 2,000 kilometers
of 2D seismic data and the drilling of 4 exploration wells. Three of the 4 wells encountered oil
and gas but were considered non-commercial at the time of drilling.

The consortivm entered into a Farm-In Agreement with Pitkin Petroleum Litd. (Fitkin) which was
approved by the Department of Energy on June 11, 2008, Under the Farn-In Agreement, Pitkin
completed a magneto-telluric survey in onshore Mindoro and acquired in May, 2010, over 200
kilometers of 2D seismic designed to delineate and assess the hydrocarbon potential of the
Progreso-1X in San Jose, Mindoro Occidental and the Sablayan, Mindore Occidental.

Omn July 11, 2011, Resource Manapgement Associates Pty Limited of Australia signed a Fann In
Agreemnent with Pitkin 1o acquire 33% {rom its 70% partivipaling inlerest.

On November 11, 2011, Pitkin reported that Sub-Phase 1, which was to end March 6, 2012, was
fulfiiled with the completion of the 200 kilomelers of seismic data. Sub-Phasc 2 which carries a
minimum work obligation of 2 wells and a [nancia] commitment of US52,000,000, have been
extended up to the resolution of the complaint filed by Famalodi, [ne., an organization of
indigenous peoples in Mindoro and the issuance of the Certificate of Precondition by the National

Commission of Indigenous Peoples (NCIPY.

The consortium agreed 1o drill Progreso-2 1o {ulfil one of the 2 well obigations and the planned
geology and geophysical works will be negotiated as (ulfilment of the second well. Far this phase,
the approved firm budgel amounts to USES,440.000 and the contingent budget amounts to

1I§%6, 140,000, Preparations are on-going far the drilling of Progresa-2, pending resolution of the
afewementioned case tiled by Famatodi, [ne. and clearance by the NCIT'. The Tarent Company has
a 3% panicipation in this service contract,
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Indonesia Qil Project

In 20§3, the Parent Company entered into a joint venture arrangement with Petrosolve Sdn Bhd, 2
company registered in Malaysia, which is into the business of developing oil fislds and halds 5
technology for enhanced chemical oil recovery. The joint venture established Grandway, a jaint
venture company in Hong Kong, which is 70% owned by the Parent Company and 30% owned by
Petrosolve Sdn DBhd, as the corporate vehicle of the joint venture in entering into business
relationships in connection with the management and operation of oil wells. The joint venture
then established PT BES, as ils operating arm in Indonesia for the management and operation of
oil wells located in said country.

FT BES acquired the rights to manage ten {10 wells in the area, with the obhjective of
rehabilitating these wells for possible limited oil production. As at December 4, 2014,

Well BES-02 has completed wire logging. Production casings are presently being installed. After
which, production tasting will be conducted. Well BLES-06 is in the first phase production testing,
Well BES-03 has completed production testing. Data from the testing is presently beinp analyzed
and will determine the optimum parameters to be used during regular production. Equipment for
Well BES-0M and BES-035 are now being procured for use in production testing and regular
production,

I'roject development costs amounting (o B151,979,511 and 239,286,179 as at Decenber 31, 2014
and 2013, respectively, was incurred in cunnection with the Group's projeet in PT BES. The full
recovery of these project development costs is dependent upon determination of lechnical
feasibility and commercial quantity of the managed and operated oil wells located in Indoncsia.

Incidents] production during the testing period amounted (o 56, 233 liters of oil, 45,410 liters of
which have alrcady been delivered to the Tocal cooperatives as per contract tenus,

The Parcnt Company has tudgeted UE$3 .59 millian for 2015 for this projeet.

treathermal Serviee Contracts (GRCs)

The Parent Company is likewise invalved in the exploration, development and preduction of
peothermal energy. It has been awarded service contracts for various areas by the DOE, which
prescribes the periads and programs for these service contracts, pursuant to Presidential Decree
Mo, 87 for the Mabini (iSC and pursuant 1o Republic Act 9513 (Renewable Energy Act of 2008)
for the subsequent (G8C.

(780 8 (35C &, which is the Mabini, Batangas GSC, was awarded to the Parent Company on July
10, 2008. The contract area is approximately 32.5 square kilometers and covers the Calumpan
Peninzula. The contract period for exploration is 5 years, and was extended up 1 2015,
subdivided in 3 Phases. Sub Fhase | {Yesars | and 2) and sub phase 2 (Year 3) minimum work
commmitments inclode geological, geophysical and geochemical works that are designed to idenlily
a drilling location and assess the geothermal potential of the contract ares. The Parent Company
has the option to driil 2 well or return the Service Contract to the DOE in case there (s no techiical
Justification to drill a well.

The Parent Company has secured the commitments of the Local Government Units which

indicated support to the project. The Certificate of Non Coverage was issued by the
Environmental Manapement Burcau on March 235, 2009 and the Certificate of Non Overlap from

the National Commission on Indigenous People was issued on April 15, 2009

The Parent Cennpany has conducted the first stage of the exploration program cnn_sisting of N
acophysical and geological surveys covering 3,481 heclares in the Calumpan Peninsula, Mabini,
Batangas. A Controlled Source Mapneto-Telluric Survey covering the area had been conducted
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and enmpleted ont March 8, 2010, The data obtained from the survey had been processed by a
Japanesc consuitant, with the objective of establishing the genthermal resource and the exploration
drilling site: in the area.

The Parent Company has completed due diligence studies and pretiminary technical data
coliection, callativn and re-evaluation as part of its commitment under Sulb Phase 1 (Years 1 and
2) of the work program commilted with the DOE. Initial assessments disclosed that the area has a
good potential for a 20-mepawatls capacity and could be developed within a 2-year perind
considering the existenee of adequate infrastructure, adjacency to transmission lines and & strong
perwer demand in the area.

For this service contracl, the work program is eurrently on Sub-Phase 3 which involves the drilling
of one (1) explaratory well by 2015, Estimated costs for this work program is B166,000,000, On
Febenary 26, 2015, Trans-Asia Energy Corporation executed a Farm-in Agreement with the Parent
Company acquiring a twenty-five percent (25%4) participating interest in this projeet. Discussions
are q-gotng with prospective drilling contractors and project management service providers.

MNew (75

The Parent Company was slso awarded the service contracty from the DQLE, covering four (4)
geothermal projects, namely: Iriga Geothermal Power Prioject, Mariveles Geothermal Power
Praject , the East Mankayan Geotherinal Power Project and the West Bulusan Geothermal Power
Project, all carrying a maximuin expluration period of § years. For the first vear program, these
projects are undergning evalvation ol existing data, permiiting and coordination with the local
government units involved. Fatimated costs for the first year work programs for these service
contracts is B7.70:0,000.

The Last Mankayan Geothermal Power Project lies immediately cast of the Cervantes, Hocos Sur
geothermal block of Pan Pacific Pawer Phils, inc. and south of the Bontoc-Sadanga block which is
operated by Magma Cnergy Resources. Immediately south iz the [Daklan block operited by Clean
Rock Energy. The area actualiy covers the 3 provinees of Benguet, Mountain Provinee and
Ifugao. The proposed area is surrounded by lets of known thermal manifestations, ¢.g. hot springs
and thermally altered grounds.

The Mariveles Geothermal Power Project, in Bataan is situated along the West Luzon Voleanic
Arc which starls from Mt. Pinafubo in the north and extends farther south across the Mantla Bay
towards Batangas and northeastern Mindora.

The Iriga Geothermal Power Project in Camarines Sur is bounded to the north by [sarog
geothermal block of Philippine National Qil Company- Renewal Corporation and to the east by
the highly productive Tiwi geothermal service contract area of formerly Chevron, now AP
Renewables Inc. The areal landscape is daminated by Iriga or Asog Volcano, a relatively in
stratovolcano immediately southwest of Lake Buhi in southern Luzon.

The West Bulusan Geothermal Power Project is situated in the municipalities of Juban,
Magallanes, Irosin, Bolan, Matnog, Santa Magdalena, and Dulosan, in the province of Sorsogon. It
iz bounded on the northeast by the geothermal ¢ontract area of SKI Construclion Group, Inc. and
15 in close vieinity to Maunt Butusan, an aetive voleana and a declared Natural Park by virtue of
Proclamation Mo. 421 on 27 November 2000, The DOE estimates the project site to have a
potential installed capacity of 50 MW. The area has previously been explored by the
PNOC - Eoergy Development Corporation in the 1980%s, Data gathered from this study is the take-
off point {or the feasibility study currenily being underaken by the Parent Company,
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Hydropawer Service Contracts (HSCs)

The Parent Company is likewise involved in the exploration, development and production of
hydro-power energy. Tt has been awarded service contracts for various areas by the DOE, which
prescribes the periods and programs tir these service coniracts, pursuant to R.A. 9513 (Renewable
Cnergy Act of 2008).

The Malogo 2 Hydropower Project was awarded 1o the Parent Company in February 2014 and is
situated in Cadiz City and Victorias City in Negros Queidental. It is situated on the northern
slopes of the North Negros Protected Park. Malogo 2 is a run-of-river mini-hydropower scheme of
development. The two branches ot the Malogo River will cach have a weir sile, wherein bath
headrace channels lead to a commnon powerhause Jocaied in the confluence of the two river
branches. Map studies indicate that Malogn 2 has a combined indicative capacity of 5§ MW, The
headrace lengths run 1.3 km and 2.3 km each, while the gross head between buth weirs and the
powerhouse site is 80 m. Confirmation of these preliminary data is being conducted via a
feasibility study currently being ennducted by the Parent Company.

The Puntian I Hydropower Project was awarded to the Parent Company in Febrvary 2014 and is
situated along Puntian River in the municipality of Murcia, Negros Cecidental. 1 iz located on the
southwestern slopes of the North Negros Protected Park. Puntian | is & run-of-river mini-
hydropower scheme of developmient, wherein a portion of the river water is diverted to a channel
leading to 2 powerhouse located downstream of the diversion structure. Map studies indicate that
Puntian I has an indicative capacity of 4 MW, The headrace length runs 1.95 km, while the gross
head is 60 m. Confirmation of these preliminary data is being conducted via a feasibility smdy
currently being conducted by the Parent Company.

The Puntian I Hydropower Project was awarded to the Parant Company in February 2014 and is
situated alonp Puntian River in the municipality of Murcia, Negros Oceidental. It is located on the
southwestern slopes of the North Negros Protected Park. Puntian Il is a run-of-river mini-
Bydropower scheme of development, wherein a portion of the river water is diverted to a channel
leading (0 a powerhouse lovated downsiream of the diversion structure. Map studiss indicate that
funtian Il has an indicative capacity of 5 MW, The headrace length runs 1.5 km, while the gross
head is 100 m. Conlirmation of these preliminary data is being conducted via a feasibility study
eurrently being conducicd by the Parent Company.

The Talahaan Hydropower Project was awarded Lo the Barent Company in February 2014 and is
situated in Cadiz City, Negros Oceidental, It iz situated on the northern slopes of the North
Megros Protected Park, Talabaan is a8 run-of=river mini-hvdropower seheme of development along
the ‘Valabaan River, wherein a portion of the river water [s diverted to a channce! leading w a
powerhouse located downstream of the diversion strueture, Map studies indicate that Talabaan
has an indicative capacity of § MW, The headrace lengths run 2 km, while the gross head is 80 m,
Confirmation of these preliminary data is being conducted via a feasibility study currently being
conducted by the Parent Company.

These servies contracts carry 4 1wo-years non-catendible period Tor pre-development. For the first
year program, these projects are undergoing evaluatien of existing data, permitting and
coordination with the local povernment units involved, Rstimated casts for the first year work
programs for these service contracts iz #7,200,0400,
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The full recovery of the deferred charges, amounting to 254,622,671 and #46,248,903 a5 at
Drecember 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, incurred in connection with the Parent Company’s
participation in the acquisition, exploration and development of petroleum coneessions

is dependent upon the discovery of vit and gas and other renewable resources in commercial
quantities from the respective contract areas and the success of future developments thereol
(see Note 100

Cnsh and Cash Eﬁuivalnnts

_ 2014 2013
Cash on hand and in banks B47,143,661 B58,938.610
Cash equivalents - - 11,604,158

 P47,143 661 PB0,542,774

Casli in banks and cash equivalents eam interest at the respeetive bank deposit rates. Cash
ctjuivalents are made for varying periods of up ta three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group.

Interest income amounted to B442, 686, ¥2,530,679 and P11,026,845 in 2014, 2013 and 2012,

respeclively (see Note 16).

The Group has United States dollar {US$) denominated eash on hand and 0 banks amounting to
US§7,695 and USE], 463,831 as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The Group has
Indanesian Rupish {IDR) denominated cash on hand and in banks amounting to 2,178,896,351
INR and 60,456,142 IDK as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively (sce Notc 24).

Receivables
2014 2013
Accounts receivable - #718,606 B
Enterest receivable 1,160,796 1,603,632
Advances to officers and employees 123,427 _
(hher receivables 4,190,677 3,887,184
6,193,506 5,581,116
1.ess atowancc for impairment o (2,549.117) {(2,544.217)
- B1.644,289 B3,031,899

Accounts receivables are short term, non-interest bearing due from third parties. Other recgivahle

arises [rom short-lerm, noninterest-bearing transactions of the Group.

Prepayments nad Other Current Assets

.- . f e it e .1']]4 2[]11

Prepaid expenses . PG02,533 R442,728
Input VAT o 1,693,083 1,233,504
P2,205,616 P1.676,232

Hrepaid cxpenscs mamly consizts of prepayments of the Group on rent, membership dues, life and

nonlife insurance, and communication expenses.
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8. AVS Fina heial Ass cis

_ 2014 2013

Debt securities - quated, at Tair value P168,205,803 B317,960,235
tnvestments in shares of stock: ' o

Chooted - at fair value 95,957,713 78,816,597

Linguoted 135,248 54,648,364

96,092,961 133,464,961
_P364,29R,764 451,425,196

Quoted instruments arc carried ai fair market value as at end of reporting period. Unquoted equity
instruments are carried al cost a8 al end of reporting period, since the fuir values cannot be reliably
measured.

The movements in AFS financial assets account follow:

) 2014 2013
Balances at Janvary | P451,425196  B305,367,784
Additions - 126,688,325
Disposals (89,933,676)
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rate (6,593) 3,574,212
Valuation gains on AFS financial assels 2,813,837 15,294,875
Balances at December 3l P364,298,764 #451 425,196

Interest rates in 2004 and 2013 on these AFS debt secarities range from 3.25% to 8.13% and
5.80% 1o R.13%, respectively. Inlerest income earned on these securities armnounied to
B16,485,231, ¥15,969,439, and £6,340,763 in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively (see Note 16).

The movements in unrealized gains on quoted AT'S financial assets in 2014 and 2013 are as
follows:

_ 2014 2013
Beginning balances B33 364,260 B18,069,385
(Jains recognized in equity id, 644,235 15,294,875
(rain on sake of AFS {inancial assets (11,830,398)
Unrealized gains in AFS financial asscls taken in
__ _other comprehensive income 2,813,837 15,294,875
Fnding balances o R36.178,097 R33,364.260

Provision for impairment losses amounted (o il in 2014 and 2013 and #3,188,403 in 2012, These
are carried at cost less allowanee for irmpairment losses. Lquity securities of the Group have an
allowance for impairment Insses as at December 31, 2014 and 2013 amounting to £4,000,435,

Dividend income earned from quoted equily shares amounted 1o 25,145,575, 83,000,953 and
F754,9901n 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively,
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8, Investment Properties

- f e e eemmen 2014 ?D].}
Acquisifion cost £115,086,295 £120,086,298
Additions - 1,500,000
Reclassifications (Mole 11) - 3,500,000
- 125,086,208 125,086,298
Accumulated unreslized pain on investmenl
propetties:
Beginntng balances 15,548,045 73,393,045
Unrealized valuation gain on investment
PropIerty 2,824,044 2,155,000
- 78,372,089 75,544,045
F.rldinE balances #103,458,187 B200,634 343

The investment properhies consist of two {1) pareels of land loceted in Bolinao, Pangasinan and
San Iabian, Pangasinan. The Group has no defmite plan as to the use of these properties
purchased as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, In accordance with PAS 40, Javestment Property,
land held for a currently undetermined future use is classified as investment property. The Parem
Company applies the fair value mode] in measuring the current value of the investment properties.

The Group engaged Vilale Valuation Services, Inc., an independent firm of appraisers, to
determine the {air values of the property in Bolinao, P'angasinan and San Tabian, Pangasinan as at
Novemboer 29, 2012 and November 6, 2012, respectively. The fair valuation was estimated
ihrough the direci market comparison approach; categorized as level 3 which is &2 comparative
appruach that considers the sales of similar or substilyte assets and related market data. The
investment property in Bolinao, Pangasinan has a price por sgquare maeler of B200. The invesiment
property lovaled in San Fabian, Pangasinan has two (2} sites: Site 1 and Site 2 with a price per
square meler of B 000 and B1LAD, respectively.

The: sipnificant unobservable input used in the fair value measurement af the Group's investment
properly 1s discounts for lack of marketahility. Significant increase (decrease) in this input would
resull in a sipmificantly lewer Chigher) fair value measorement,

Diireet operaling cxpenses related to the investment properties include real property taxes patd in
204 and 20713 amonnting to 266,903, #3534 158 and P264,144, respectively.

The Group has no restriction on the realizability of its investment properties and no contractual
oblipations (o purchase, eonstruct or develop investment properties or for repairs, maintenance and
crhancements,

10. Deferred Charges

The movemenis in deferred charpes {oilow:

2014 2013

Beginning balances 01,991,538 Pa0,928,049
Additions 8,373,768 1,063,489
100,365,306 91,921,538

Less allowance for impalrment 1gss 43,742,635 45,742,633

Ending balances P54,622,671  P46,248 903
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Under the §Cs entered into with the DOE covering certain petrolcum conlract areas in various
locatians in the Thilippines, the participating oil companies {colleetively known as Contractor)
are obliged to provide, at their sale risk, the services, technology and financing necessary in the
performance of their obligations under these contracts. The Contractors are also obliged to spend
specified smounts indicated in the contracl in direct proportion to their work obligations.

However, if the Contractors fail to camply with their work obligations, they shall pay to the
government the wmount they should have spenl but did not, in direct proportion lo thelr work
obligations. The participating companies have Operating A greements ameng themiselves, which
govern their ripghts and obligations under thesc contracls,

On July 10, 2008, the Group and the Government of the Republic of the Fhilippines through the
DOE, engaged a GSC wherein the Group will undertake and execute the geothermal operations
contemplated under the GSC. The geothermal aperations shall include geothermal exploration,
development and production. It shall also consists of surface exploration and subsurface
exploration. Surface explomtion deals primarily with reconnaissance 1o detailed activities, studies
and geo-scientific investigations. Subsurface exploration refers mainly to drilling activities for the
purpose of making discovery and delineating the reservoir. Geothermal development, on the other
hand, refers to the drilling of appraisal, development and reinjectian wells and geo-scientific
activities related thereto for the purpose of exploiting the delineated geothermal reservoir, which
includes the installation of wellhcad cquipment, collecting pipes and pressure vesscls for sieam
extraction. Geothermal production is the set of activities which involves the netual extraction of
geothermal fluid for commercial utilization, but does not include the utilization of such geothermal
fluid.

The lerm of the GSC is for five years from the effvetive date consisting of three subphases,
renewable for another two years,

'I'he 4 new GSCs this year start with a five-year pre-developmenl stage. Afierwards, the developer
has to declare commerciality before proceeding to developmen! stage. The second phase can run
from 25 to as long as 50 years, depending on resuits of exploration tesls,

The recently received 115Cs include hydropower exploration, development, production and
utilizarion, including the construction, nstallation, eperation and maintenance of hydropower
systems to conver hydropower to electrical power and the transmission of guch clectrical power
and/or nem-electrical uses.

Tle accumulated cosis incurred in connection with the exploration contracts aye shown under
“Deferred charges™ account in the consolidated statements of finaneial position. "the full recovery
of these deferred cxploration costs is dependent upon determination of technical feasibility and
commercial quantity of an identifiable resource,
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11. Property and Equipment

AL COST
2014
Office
Equipment,  Ruilding and
Furniture and Leasehald ‘Transportation
Fixtures Ilmprovement Equipment Todal
Cist;
Beginning balances ®O.318,379 5,156 648 ¥5,511.935 BI1,597 062
Additluns 113540 — — L6456
Ending balances 10,691,015 5 [56.648 £,521.U3% 22,370,608
Accumutated Dhepreciation:
Begihnilng balances 0,1R0.9%7 3,035,818 3490651 16,425 456
Depreciation [Mate 18) 559,206 172,035 1,042,158 LEO3389
Ending balances _ 9 879 193 3B07 443 4,541,800 18,228,845
Net boak values P&i1,B32 #1,348,805 P1,581,126 B4,141,763
2013
Offtes
Equipment, Building and
Furniture and Leaschold  Transportation
- Larnl o Fixtures  Improvement Equipment Totat
Cost:
Beginning balances £3 500,000 P9 559,215 a5 156, (48 B6,425,195 B24.641 058
Additions - 359 184 7740 456,904
Reelassificalion (Moig ) {3, 500,400} - - - 43500000
Lnding balanees - 8,918,379 5 156 K48 6,522 515 21,597 962
Accumulaicd Deprectarion:
Bepinning halances - RADT R4 1,463,793 2,482 607 14,844 224
Drepreciaiion {Hate 18) - 192 163 172025 1,017 044 [,581,232
Ending balances - 0 239987 635K 3459 651 16,425 456
Mat bork values - P fA2Y 107 1,520,830 B3 .023,284 B 172 506
At revalued amounts:
) 2014 2013
Revatued Amount P15,250,000 £25,250,000
Accumulated Depreciation
Beginning balances 2,562,687 879,355
Depreciation {Notc 18} B 1,683,334 1,683,332
Cnding balances i 4,246,021 2,562,687
Net Book Values ¥11,003979 PI2 657,313

The fand Incated in lmelda, Guialac, Zamboanga del Norte was reclassified by the Group in 2013
ax invesleent properiics from property and equipment.

Feveluarion of Ciffice Condominium

The Group engaged Roval Asia Appraisal Corporation, an independent firm of appraisers, to
determing the Tair value of ils office condominium as at June ¥, 2012, The fair value is delcrmined
using the generally accepted sales vomparizon approach, The date of the appraisal was

June 14, 2012, The estimated retnaining Life of the office condominium is 16,75 years as at

appraisal date.
TR A GEARI R,
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Revaluation increment in gifiee condominium as at December 37, 2014 and 2013 amourted to
P14,630,975 and #15,809,309, respectively, which is presented under the “Revaluation increment
in cifice condominium™ account in the consolidated statements of financtal position and
consolidated statemnents of changes in eguity.

[f the office condominium was measured using the cost moded, the carrying amount as of
December 3], 2014 and 2013 would be as follows:

2014 2013

Cast B1,730,010 P1,730,010
Accumulated depreciation {B07,338) {692 004)
022,672 1 038 006

The cost of the Group’s [ully depreciated assets still in pse amounted to £11,93%9,760 and
#11,012,028 as 11 December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

. Accounts Payahle and Accrued Expenses

2014 2013

Accounts pavable P12,381 693 PO 557
income tax payable 97,39] 45 827
Cther payables _ 138,757 674,223
13,417,841 21,698,607

Accounts psyable consists of short-term and noninterest-bearing trade payables to the Group's
Joval suppliers with an average credit terms of 30 days. Other payables are liabilities to various
government ageneics generally pavable within 30 days.

. Equity

Capital Stock
‘The details of the capitul stock are as follows:

2014
No. of Shares ___Amount
Authorized - B0.25 par value 10,000,000,000  B2,500,000,000
Unissued (8,241,854,54%) {2,060,463,636)
Issued _ 1,758,143,455 439,556,364
Subscribed 2,678,578,057 669,644,514
Subscriplions receivable (1,877,330,000) {469,307,300)

801,348,057 200,337,014
2,559.493,512 _ P639.873.378
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2013
No. of Shares Amaount
Authorized - #0125 par value 10,000,000,000 B2 500,000,000
Liniganed (8,241,854,545) (2,060,463,636)
issued 1,758,145,455 435,536,364
Subscribed 2,640,848,057 661,712,014
Subscriptions receivable (1,877,230,000) (469,307 5003

769,618,057 192,404,514
2,527,763,512  B631,940.878

The movenients on shares outstanding in 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

- 2014 2013
Bepinning balances 2,527,763,512 2,442,493 512
Addittonal subscription 31,730,000 -
Payment of subscription s £5,270,00(
_I;inding balances 2,559,493,510  2,527,763,512

Below is the Parent Company’s track record of registration:

a,

On January 26, 1973, the SEC authorized the Pareni Company to sell to the public

617.5 million shares nut of its unissped capital stock as of December 31, 1972 within one year
from order date, unless extended by the SEC. As of December 37, 1973, the Parent
Comnpany's authorized capital stock is 1.5 billion shares with par value of B3.01.

On September 8, 1973, the Parent Company applied with the Manila Stock Exchange and
Malkati Stock Fxchange for the listing of its capital stack as of September &, 1973
(495,251,000 fully paid-up shares and with respect to 1,004,749,000 shares, upon full payment
and issuance of the corresponding stock certificates). The applications for listing were
approved by the Boand of Governors of both the Manila Stock Fxchange and Makati Stock
Exchange on September 30, 1973 and September 13, 1973 respectively. Said listing was duly
approved by the SEC on October 16, 1973,

On October 17, 1974, the SEC approved the increase in the Parent Company’s authorized
capital stock from B15.0 mitlion (consisting of 1.5 billion shares) to B40.0 million (consisting
of 4.0 billion shares) at the same par vahie of #0.01. The SEC also approved the 6(%4 stock
dividend (B9.0 million) declaration ta siockholders of record as of August 15, 1974,

The Parent Company granted (o stockholders of recurd a5 of November 15, 1974 the right to
subscribe at par of B0.01 per share to the unissued and unsubscribed portion af the increased
capital stock amounting to £10.0 million (1.6 billion shares), at the ratio of 2 sharcs of stock
for every 3 shares of stock registered in the stackholders’ name.

O Qulober 23, 1974, the SEC authorized the {isting of the additional 2.5 billion shares of the
Parent Company’s increased capital stock {200.0 million fully paid-up shares representing the
60% stock dividend, and with respect 1o 1.68 biltion shares, upon full payment and issuanee of
corresponding stock certificates) in the Manila Stock Exchange, Makati Stock Exchange, Inc.
and Metropolitan Stock Exchanpe, Toe. The listing took effect on November 6, 18974, On
(ctoher 16, 1973, the SEC had avthorized the listing of the Parent Company's original shares
of stock of 1.5 billion shares in the first fwo stock exchanges.

On Tebruary 4, 1976, the SEC approved the inerease in anthorized capital stoek from
£40.0 miltion (8240 million or 6% Clazs A and P16.0 million or 40% Class B} to
PO0E millicm (P&00 million or 50% Class A and £240.0 million or 40% Class B) bath with 4
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par value of B0.01 per share. The Parcol Company also granted preemptive rights 1o
stockholders of record as of October 31, 1973 to subseribe at par value of B0.01 per share to
2200 million (B12.0 million Class A and B8 .0 million Class B} at the ratio ol one share for
every two shares held, ‘I right was exercisable on or before Jannary 15, 1976 with a 25%
down payment and the balance pavable upon call by the ROTY,

On Duecember 22, 1975, the SEC issued 1o the Parent Company a “Certificate of Permit lo
OdTer Securities for Sale” covering the said capital increase of B60.0 million (836.0 millivn
Class A and P24.0 million Class B}, On February 26, 1976, the listing of the shares
reprasenting the said B60.0 million increase in authorized capital stoek of the Parent Company
in the stock exchanpes was approved.

e. UnNovember 13, 2007, the SCEC approved the increase in the capital stock of the Parent
Compsany for 2500.0 million consisting of the 2 billion sivarcs to 2.5 billion consisting of
10.0 billion shares. Pursuant to this ingrease, 537.5 million shares to the subscribers to the
vapital increase were on January 10, 2008.

[, OnMay 28, 2009, the Parent Company issued 120,853,182 shares to a new investaor,
ZN Biofuels, In¢., the registration of which was exempt and contirmed as such by the SEC.
g On September 22, 2009, the Parent Company issued 31,818,182 shares to Shouk Financial
Services |L.td,, the registration of which was exempt and tikewise confirmed as such by the
SEC.

h. On Scptember §, 20111, the SCC approved the Stock Option Plan of the Parent Company
granting directors, members of the advisory board, officers and employess of the Parent
Company options to purchase, at the par valuc of 8,25 per share, a total of 500,000,000
shares. Out of these shares, 26.7 milliun have been paid and listed in the Philippine Stock
Exchange on January 21, 2013 which was classified as deposit for future stock subscription as
of December 31, 2012, On July 24, 2013, the Philippine Stock Exchange approved {or listing
the remaining 473,000,000 shares,

As gt Decomber 31, 2014 and 2013, additional 31.73 million and 58.57 million shares for
listing, respectively have been paid and listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange.

S0P

On July 11, 2007, the Parent Company’s BOD and stockholders approved the SOP.
Om September B, 2011, the SEC approved the SOP.

The Basic terms and conditions of the SOF are:

v The SOP covers up to 500,000,000 in favor of direetors, officers and employees of the Parent
Company.

¢ The agreement provides for an exercise price of #0.25 per sharc.

o These aptions will b seitled in equity once exercised.

+ Al options are exercisable on the third (3™} vear afier the approval of the SOP by the
stackholders which wil] therefore expire on July 11, 2010.

On June 18, 2010, the stockholders approved the extension of the exercise peried to July 11, 2013,
Iin 2013, ateal of sevenieen directors, and the chairman and a member of the advisory board and
certain afficers of the Parent Company have exerciced the slock option plan and subscribed for the
tatal of 300,000,000 shares at the exercise price. Weighted averipe caercise price amounted o
#(),25 per share. Out of these shares, 26.7 million have heen paid and listed in the Philippine
Stock Exchange on Janvary 21, 2003 which was classified as deposit {or future stock subseription
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as ar Decembher 31, 2012, On July 24, 2013, the Philippine Stock Exchange approved for listing
the remaining 473,000,000 shares. Az at December 31, 2013, additiona) $8.57 million shares have
been paid and listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange,

There was no new SOP granted in 2014 and 2013,

The stock price at exercise date is .25,

14,

Treasury Stock

The treasury stock represents 18.0 million shares of the Parent Company which are held by
BGEC.

15

Froup Information

Subsidiary with material non-controlling interest

In 2013, the Parent Company entered into an agreement with Patrosnive S1IN BH13, a Malaysian
corporation engaged in the business of oil fields services, to incorporate Grandway, in which (he
Parent Campany has 70% equity interest. The Group’s interest in {irandway is accounted for
under PFRS 10, Consalidated Financial Statements.

The Parent Company, through Grandway, incorparated FI' BES ta carry oul its oil well business in
Intdoncsia. The Group owns 7% equity interest m PT BES.

This information is based on amounts Lefore intercampany eliminations.

The summarized financial information of SRI, Grandway and PT BES provided below:

2014 SRI Grandway PTRBES
Non-controlling interest 27.42% 300 33.50%
Financial position:

Current assets BT RUT RIT7,660 PR.65E.016
Non-current assets 173,228,242 152,123,599
Current liabilities o (216,954)  (174,086,583)  (181,752,873)
Non-controlling interest (F57,323) {1144 204 (BT 025,372

Financial performance:
General and administrative
LXpEnse B9G220 Pl44,193 #8.933,102
Other income - {44 (29,611}
Provigion for finaJfax. - - -
Gironap's share in net loss for the

vear 69,880 100,904 5,921,221
Non-contralling intergst share in

net loss for the year 26,400 43,245 2,982,870
et loss Ui, 280 #144,149 By, 904,091
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204 SR Grandway PT BES
Cash o
Opurating activities (RTT.BE3) {P131,807) BA 570,646
Investing activities - {(121,68046™ {112,693,332)
Financing activities 71,949 121,784,880 119,716,449
Net increase (decrease) in cash o
and cash equivalents _(B5.934) B2511 F7,577,39]
2013 SRI  Grandway FI'RES
Non-controlling interest 27.42% 30.00% 33.50%
Fipancial position:
Current assets Pi13.831 B3471 609 B253.476
Non-current assers - 51,490,451 Jo 88472
Current liabilities (126,608)  (52,153,246) (51,049,952
Non-vontrolling infersst (#31,035) {B92,0%1 (P4,298,534)
Financial performancae:
CGieneral and administrative
EXPEnse El13. 796 B100,97] Bl12,334,0506
Oither income {121 (43 {2,959
Provision for final tax 24 R
Group's share in net loss for the o
year 82,527 214,877 8,532,909
Non-controlling interest share in
net loss for the vear _ 31,076 52,090 4,298,534
Net loss 213 695 B106,967 P12,831,443
Cash flow;
Operating activilies (42,325 B51,848,279 18,206,260
Investing activilics (51,490,451) (39,738,641}
Financing activities - -
et increase {decreasa) in cash
and cash equivalenis (P42,325) F3155,824 (B1,532.375)
16, Interest Income
2014 K 2012
Interest income on:
AFS financial assets - debt securities
{Mote 81 P16,4585,231  R15,969,439 s 340,763
Cash and cash equivalents (INote &) 442,686 2,330,679 11,026,845
Short-lerm cash invesimenils - - 282,379
Lonp-term cash investmenl - - 37,379

#16,927.917 21800118 BRIV, 707,366
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Enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one or imore intermediaries, control
or are contralled by or under common contrel with the Group, including holding companies,
subsidiaries and fellvw subsidiaries, are related parties of the Group. Associates and individuals
owning, directly ar indircetly, 4n inierest in the voting power of the Group that gives them
significant inflocnue over the enterprise, key management personnel, including directors and
officers of the Group and close members of the family of these individuals, and companies
associated with these individuals also constitute related parties. In considering each possible
related entity relationship, altention is directed to the substance of the relationship and not mercly
the legal form,

Compensation of Key Management Personne!
4. Shares of stock of the Parent Company held by members of the RO1Y aggregated to

142,437,245 and 114,497,245 as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

b. Compensation of key management personnel consists of shart-term employee benefits and
post-employment benefits. Short-term employee benefits amounted to #140.9 miltion,
#10.1 million and #11.9 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, while, post-
employment benefits amounted to #8.7 miilion, #4.3 million and $3,05 in 2014, 2013 and
2012, respactively.
Directors’ remuneration cansists only of per diems for attendance at the BOD and Committee
meetings. In 2014, 2013 and 2012, total per diems recetved by the members of the BOD
amounted to 2.1 million, B1.88 million and #2.72 million, respectively. There is no existing
compensatory plan or arrangement for directors of the Parent Comypany.

Remuneration of existing officers of the Group are covered in their employmant contracts, and
excepl for retirement benefits under the Group's Retirement Plan, there are noe existing
compensatory plans or arrangements for officers of the Group.

A stock option plan {SOP) for directors and officers was approved by the stockholders on
July 11, 2007, and the exercise period was extended to July 2013, The SEC issued on
September 8, 201 ] 2 resolution exenpting the S0P from the registration requirements under
the Securities Regulation Code.

The Parent Company’s outstanding amounts of imvestments in and advances to subsidiaries
which were eliminated in the consolidated level are as follows:

W14
Allinvance Tor Allpwaney for
Cost Impairment 'l'otal Advances Impairmen{ Total

EDIHI BILTOR5 800  B227 085,800 - ERX,615280 ¥21.439342 P178,938
SWR 75,041,250 75,341,230 - 171,954 - 171,934
BRC 64,000,000 64,000,000 - 5,514,716 5,584,083 230,633
asig 53,547 840 53,547,840 - J684, 662 3,346,880 337, TH2
Bl 24,000,000 ~ 20,000,000 204 - 200
BRI 56,975,000 20,000,000 36,975,000 - - -
Crandway - — — 173995267 - 173 995167

P496,949,890  P439,074,590 PS6975,000 B205,285,179  P30,370,305  P174,914574
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23
Allowance for Allowance for

o Invesimins Impairment Total Advancey Impairment Taotal

BDIHI  B237,0R5,800 F227,085 800 B~  P21,548,721  D1|,439,342 P109,379
SWER 75,341,250 45,341,250 - 100,105 - 100,005

BB CERIUIREE 64,000, 003 - 5,738,300 5,584,083 154 287

1Rasic 53,547,840 53,547 840 3,572,034 3,346,580 225,159

FLR| 20,000,000 20,000 26t - - -

BEFI 20,600,000 20,000 004 - 36,975,000 36,975,000 -

Grandway - = - 52,371 385 - 52,372,365

F459,914=,89ﬂ P45 974 890 B20,600,000 P120,306,500  PAV.345305  F62,96),145

------

The amounts of transactions wilh subsidiaries that were eliminated in the consolidaled leve] are as
Follows:

Amount of Outstanding Receivable Terms
Transactions 3 Halance and
Namre of Transaction 2014 2013 2014 2013 Conditicns
BRI '
Advances R- B P-  B36975,000 {a}, (&)
Collection of advances - - - -
2[31H]
Advances 68,560 111,727 11,618,280 11,548,721 {a), (5]
Coilection of advances - 16,063 - -
BB
Advances 16,546 156,511 5,814,716 5,738,3M {a}, (d)
Collection of advances — 2654 - -
iBasic
Advances 112,623 183,429 3,684,662 3,572,039 (o, (o)
RGEL
Advances 200 B 244 200 - furl
Collection of advances - §a,944 -
SWER
Advances 71,549 116,705 171,954 100,005 ([
Coliection of advances - 16,704 - -
Crandway
Advances 20,622,908 52372365 173,995,207 52.372,365

208,288,079 120,306,500
30,370,305 67,345,305

P174914,774  B52,961,195

Less: wllowance for impairment

fa) Nosinterest bearing, unsecuwred advances, due and demandablic,

B} With allowance for impairsent amounting (o F21,438,342 av ol December 31, 2014 and 2013,
fer With allowarce for impairment amounting to B2, 3146 880 a5 af December 31, 2014 and 2043,
(&l Hieh aflowanice for impairment amounting fo #5584, 083 as ot December 31, 2004 and 2013
fg) With J004¢ provision for impaiement qs gt December 37, 2801,

(1 Wo pravision for impairment as of December 32, 2014,

Reversal of impairment loss on advances to related parties amounted to 236,975,000 and nil in
20714 and 2013, respectively,

On June 25, 2014 and December 29, (14, the BOT and by the vote of the stockholders owning or
representing at teast two-thirds of the cutstanding capital stock and SFEC, respectively, approved
the conversion of advances to BRI amounting to #36,975, (10 to investment in subsidiary.

Allowance for impairment loss on investment in subsidiaries amounted to #429,974, 890 as @
December 31, 2014 and 2013, No provision for impairment [oss was recognized in 2014 and

P
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Transactions with Retirement Henefit Fund

.46

4. The Parent Company’s retirement benefit fund is in the form of a trust being maintained by a

Lrustes bank.

b. The carrying amount and fair value of the retivement henefit fund as at December 31, 2014 and

2013 amounted to P9,518,876 and B5,918,763, respectively (see Note 19),

¢.  The sssets and investments of the retirement benefit fund as at December 31, 2014 and 2013

fullows:
2014 2013
Investments in bonds B4,109.609 E2076. 803
Investment int unit investment trust Tund 2,791,217 [ 928616
Special savings deposits 197,118 1,895 578
Investment in stocks [,185,7090 -
{ Mhers 43,369 17,761
Accrugd payahiss {8,137} -
#9518.876¢  P5,918,763

d. In 2014 and 2013, the Parent Company contributed 23,000,000 and £2,500,000 to the

retirement benefit fund (see Note 19),

18, General and Adminisirative Expenses

1014 2013 2012
Personnel:
Salaries and wapges ®17,748,514 P13 431,877 B14,281,245
Other employes benefits 4,430,130 4,125,341 7,912,734
Retirement benefits cosl 3,651,835 3,504 951 3,147,942
Transportation and travel 3,621,375 3,054,013 4,348,504
Diepreciation and amortization {Note 11) 3,486,723 1,264 564 3,642 532
Representation and entertainment 3,303,483 2, 709818 4,643,108
Outside Services 1,906,378 8,517,304 -
Taxes and licenses 1,871,133 3,133,226 1,130,770
Professional fees 1,685,285 2,056,346 957,196
Communication 077,944 202,892 fi02,20]
Liilities 919,389 326,642 897,430
Rem R15,028 310,960 -
CHfice supplies 492,586 342,334 278,290
Repairs and maintenance 171,711 226,605 180,144
Annual stockholders mesting - 804,761 704,205
Donation 306,000 31,000
Associalion and membership dues 219,385 105,273
Arbitration and legal Tecs - - 2,780,877
Provigion for impairment of receivables
{Mote &) - - SER,373
Cihers 3,254,452 1699238 3,142,757
F49,337,106 P50,530,759  P49,383,583
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14, Reti rement Benefits

The Parcnl Company maintains a funded, nonconlribrtory defined retirement benelit plan
covering all qualified employees. A trustee bank is administering the retirement benefits Tund
under the supervision of the Board of Trustees of the plan. The Board of Trustees s responsible
for investment of the assets. [t defines the investment strategy as oflen as necessary, al least
annually, especially in the case of signilicani market developments or chanpes 1o the structure of
the plan participants, When defining (he investment strategy, it takes account of the plans’
objectives, benelil obligalions and risk capacily. The investment strategy is dedined in the torm of
a long-term largel structure (invesiment policy). The Board of Trustees delegates the
implemeniation of the investment.

The fellowing tables summarize the components of retirement benefits cost recognized in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income and the amounts recopmized in the consalidated
statements of financial position.

The amounts of defined benefit retirement obligation recogmized in the consolidated statements of
financial position follow:

Dafinad et Defined
Benefit Fair Yalue of Reneflt
2014 Liz hility Plun Asucls Liability
At January § F13.556 400 (F5.918,763) PTO6T 63T
[nterest cosi (income} 602 86l (328, T16) 276,145
Current seryvice cost 3,375,600 - 3 AT5690
_ 3,978,451 {326,716} 3,651,835
Artuarial (guin) Inss:
Change in Timancial assumptions L, 113,673 - 2103673
Remeasurement gain - (373,397 (173,397}
Ilxperience mdjustments 1463421 - 1463431
3,507,494 (273,297} 3,203 697
Cantributions . - (3,000 0003 (2,000,000
Al December 3 R21431,043 (9,518, 878) P11.513,16%
Defingd Ner Deefined
Benefit Fair Value of Benefil
01} Liubility Plan Asssts Liahitiry
At lanuary ¢ F11573, 104 (BI6359.378) _H7.03TT2
Intoreal cost {ineeme} 41,147 F2ATINM 294,137
Current service cost 3210514 - J2T0NT4
o 3,751,961 (247010 3,504,551
Actuarial logscs {gains):
Change in financial assumptions &71,H0 E71.504
Remensurernenl giih - {37,798} (37,706
Changes in demapraphic assumpion (1,785,190} = (17RS L4
- {913,200) (37,7%6) {951,086)
Benelils paid (523.371) 515371
Comtritirians [2.500.0HH0 (2,500,600
At Benember 31 B13,885,400 (P5,918,761) B7.567,637
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The major eategories of the Company’s plan sssets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan
assets are as follows:

2014 2013
Money market invesiments 85% BRY
Cash in bank and other receivables 15% 32%
100.04% 100.00%

The cost of defined benefit pension plans and other post-employment medical benefits as well as
the present value of the pension obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions. The principal assumptions used in determiniag
pension and post-employment medical benefit obligations for the defined benc{it plans arc shown

below:
R 014 20113
Discount ratc 4.61% 5.525%
Salary projeetion rate 8.00% 5.00%

The sensitivily analysis below has heen determined based on reasonably possible changes of each
signiticant assumnption on the defined benefit obligatien as at end of the financial reporting date,
assuming it' all other assutnptions were held constant:

Increase (Decrease) Salary Increass Rate
Diseount rata +1.00% (R2,277.258)
-1.00% P2.812,345

Future salary increase +1.00% #2,600,789
-1.00%% (2,167,294

The Group expects te contribute B10.0 million (o the detfined benefit pension plan in 2015,

ﬁ.Tn come Taxes

5. Being enpaped in petrolewm operations in the Philippines, the Parent Company and SWR are
entitled 1o cerlain tax ineentives under Presidential Decree (PDI Mo, §7, as amended, Linder
I'D No. 87, contraciors are exempt from all taxes, except income taxes.

b, Current incotne tax in 2014, 2013 and 2012 pertains to MCIT. Provision for income tax
consizls of!;

2H4 2013 2012

Current PO7 301 B45,827 ®102,770
Deferred {12,025,391) 3,429,822 (868,862}
{11,928,600% 3,475,649 {766,092)

Final tax 3,332,074 3,679,802 3,480 804
Capital gains tax - - 12,589,629

(P8,595,926)  PB7,135451  PI15.304,341
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The compenents of net deferred incone tax asscts recopnized by the Group as al

December 31, 2014 and 2013 are az follows:

o 2014 2013
Neferred income 1ax assels on:

NOLCO P10,389,557 #210,054
Accrued retirgment benelils 1,426,736 1,231,187
MCIT 97,392 -
Cither payables o 75867 73,867
11,989,552 1,517,108

Dedemed income tax liabilily on:
Revaluation increment on office condominium (6,270,416) (6,775,416)
Unrealized Toreipn exchange pain £1,020,034) {2,067 9381}
- (7,290,450) (8,343,397
Acerued retiremenl benelits - GCT 2,147,214 1,159,104
Net deferred income tax assets { liabjlities) B6,846,316 {(P6,167,145)

Az at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group has temporary difference for which no deferred
income tax asset was recognized as management expects that it is not probable that sufficient
future taxable profit will be available against which deferred income tax asset can be utilized.

Telails are as Tollows:

2014 2013
NOLCO BRi, 963,756 122,571,672
Allowance for impainment on:
Dieferred charges 44,742,635 45,742,635
AFS financial assets 4,090,935 4,000,915
Receivables 2,549,217 2,549217
Pre-operating expenses 3,415,997 3,415,997
Excess of MCIT over RCIT 148,597 313,574
B136,911,137  R178.684,030

As at December 31, 2014, the Group has NOLCO and MCIT that can be utilized as deduction
from future taxable income and income tax due, respectively, follow:

Excess MCIT
Year Incurred NOLCO _over RCIT Expiry Year
2014 35,435,230 go97,302 2017
2013 40,939,470 45,527 2016
2012 40024 277 102,770 2015
F116,398,986 B245,980
Movements in NOLCO and excess MCIT fullow:
NOLCO 2014 o amy
Beginning balances 2113271852 p177,122,782
Additions 35,435,231 40,939,479
Expirations {42, 308,(W6) (94,790,408}
Ending balances #116,398,986 P123,271,852

L
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MCIT _2m4 2013
Reginning balances p313s74 P267,747
Additions 27,392 45 827
Expiraticiny (164,977) _
Ending balances P245989  B313.574

For incume tax purposes, the BGEC's and BBLs pre-aperating cxpenses lataling B3,415,997
as at December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, will be amortized over Live years from

the starl of commercial operations.

The reconciliation of the provision fo (henetit from) income lex compuied at the statutory tax
rate 1o the provision for mcome tax as shown in the consalidated profit or loss follows:

2014

2013

2012

Provision for {benefit from}
income tax )

computed ar 30%

Adjustments for:

Movement in temporary
differences for which no
deferred income tax asscts
were recognized

Interest mcome subjected to

final tax

Non-taxable income subjected

to final tax

Nondeductibie expenses

Gain on sale of AFS

investments suhjected to final

tax

Eapiration of NOLC{) and

MCIT

Capital gains tax

Effect of lower tax rate on fair
value adjusiments on
intvestment properites

Income from previous sale of
BPMI subject to capital
gains tax

Others

(#4,568,251)

(9,894,875)
(1,746,301)
(2,390,886)
991,045
(3,549,119)

12,857,406

(194,945)

(B5,997,064)

14,031,738

(835,696)

10,645

45,827

P78,252,887

9,723,633

(2,056,983
1,783,484
102,770
12,589,620

(17,614,334)

(67.486,755)

Provision for (benefit from}
income {4

(B8,595,926)

B7,155,451

P15,304 341

BRI
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21. Hasie/D¥iluted Earnings Per Share

The following reflects the income and share data used in the hasic and diluted carnings per share

computation:
014 2013 2
Mot income {loss) altribelable to o
equify holders of the Parent
Company (a) (P3,5M9,062)  ({B22,723,365) B245,443,662
Transaction cost on potential
iszuance of comman shares — (525,000°%

Met income attrilbutable to

halders of the Pareat Company

_adjusted for the effect of dilution (b) (B3,579.062) {(B21723 865) H244. 818,662

Weighted average number of shares for

bsic earnings per share {c ) 2,5589,493,512 2,527,763 512 2,442,403 512
Stock options (Nutw |5) = ' 500,008,000
Weighred average number of shares

adjusted for the effect of dilution {d} 2,559,405,512 2527761 512 2.942,493,517

Basic earnings (loss) per share {a‘c) (PO.O01)  (H0.009) £0.101
Lriiuted earnings (toss) per share {hid) (0.001) (0.0 0083

There have been no olher transactions involving common shares or potential common shares
belween the end of financial reporting period and ihe date of issuance of these consolidated
financial stalerments,

22, Spgment Information

The primary segment reporting format is determined to be divided nto business segments for
which the Group’s risk and rate of return are atfected predeminantly by differences in the products
produced. 'The aperating businesses are orpanized and managed separately through the Parent
Company and its subsidiaries aceording ta the nature of the products provided, with each segment
representing a strategic business unit that offers difterent products to differant markets.

As of Deceinber 31, 2074 amd 2013, the Group has three main busingss segments - investment
helding, agriculture and cnergy oil and pas exploration,

The Group’s operating business segments remain to be neither organized nor managed by
geographical segment.

The following table presents certain sepment results, assets and tiability infarmation regarding the
Group’s busingss sepments:

2014
Energy,
[nyeytmoend Oil apd Gas
. Mnlding Exploration Elimbna tigns ‘Total
Results:
Income (losa) belore income (a3 #31312,710 (FO 465,113 (F36,975,000 {RI5,207503)
Henefit from {pravilen for)
ncemne (ux o e 4,50637% [453) - § 595,016
Mt income [Joss) I0,809 0% {9, 465 0 fir) {30,575, 000 } (6631577}
Assels nnd Lialilities:
SoEmont KEaces PUEL 3G, G40 Fi%4,678, 145 (P4l SA0,410) ELA- P B o)
invesimend properlies ) o o 189.004,387 4,302,000 - 103450 387
Cooselida led lul] #ssels F1080,732,827 E189.040,145 (406,560,413) £H63,1502 554

LR
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Energy,
Tnvestient Uil and (a5
_— . Helding Faploed tion Lliminaticns Tatul
Consolidaied iwiat liabilities $214,157,267  PIGR.T2I 852 WISTHG1A25)  PILRI9 704
Other Scpmedt Informa Han: : e
Additiong lu:
Froperly and cqulpment F7171.646 B E- BTI2446
Dreferree charges - S 622,471 - 5446224071
Project develypmeni coata - 151,979,511 151079511
Depreciation 3,428,519 58,204 - 5.465,723
2013
Enesgy,
[nvesimenl Cul and Gas
L Hnlding, _ Exylortion Agriculiurg Tliminatinns Tolal
B esilts:
Income (loss) before mmcome @x (E70I5150  4F11 94637 (B115.AE9) B (B L9 S 214
Provision for invume bax i0,838.524) (34,54 5 {1,982Y - (1,135451)
Net income flnge) (4756677 (B12271717)  (FLLTETI) . (27,145 66.5)
Agzere and 1iabilines: o
Segamenl aiely Ra66 566 23] B 10,E3T028 PTONTIR  (R124.765451)  P633E26 604
Inveslment properiics 196,271,343 4,362,000 - 200,654, 143
Crnyolidaied 101a) asacs FS 63,238 574 F1E5, 1028 P90, TeE {R1id 745451 P854 4621 547
Cangoidated tatal lishilities P94 471 660 157,279, 148 P36099.08d  (RITL993789)  FL6,722 143
Drher Segment [nfisrmation: e
Additions o
Fropetly e cquipment B2 AT BI26.23| - =8 456,904
Dreferied changes - 46,248.003 - - di, 248,803
Frajec! development costs - 18386, - 0,786,173
Dhep:ecition 1240615 23,530 - - 1204, 544
2
Cnerpy,
Fnvestiment a1 ] G
i Holding Faplnration Arriaulturne Eliminaticng | ptal
Results
Income {nse} hafore income 8163 506,598 H3YT 30 i#],491.811) [WTI845T  BAG0.681.720
Frowisiun (U imcums Lax L1525 8003 (17068 {3,034 - 19,255 050
Biel IMCOME {1088y BT 380758 P270.464 (F1,496,935) [BTIEA%T]  P245.425 760
Assrls and Liabilities T
Segent & sels a2 2011511 P0G 627 BO41ABY  (PZLISS.BA3]  PAS2663.795
[NYCEIMENT [IFOATEs 193,474 343 - - - 193,478,343
Chefeared income b wasels 13,311,542 - T : 13,301,043
Consvliduted Wil asseis PAOR 594 814 (HRTENER, _B9S1AET(R2L155.843) PRS0 455083
Congalidated total babilities P71 564 5 795,147 B17.042 100 (PETI94.750)  BILASDAES
Qe Sepmenl Infurmation
Trevision ot impairmenst loss B3I TE He = #- 3,776,778
Addilions
Termerty and equipnaent 305582 - - - 3,305,792
Leferred cherges - 45185414 45,183,414
Frojest developrient costs - - - - -
Lipreciation and amortization 2,892 144 - 750,386 3 641,512

a3

Fair Vulne Measnrements

Fair vahie is detined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market parlivipants al the measurement date. Fair
values are obtained fron quoted market prices, discounted cash flow models and aption priciag

midels, as appropriate,
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The following methods and assumplions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate such value:

Cash ond cash equivalenty, receivables and accoumis payable and accrued expenses

Dnie to the short-termt nature of cash and cash equivalents, receivables and accounts payahle and
dividends payabie and accrued crpenses, the camrying values of these accounis were assessed to
approximate their fair valies, '

AFS finemcial assets

AFGS financial assets in quited equily instruments and quoted debt instruments are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at fair value, which is deterimined by reference to
quoted market prices at (hw close of business on the reporting dats. AFS financial assets in
unguoted equity instrumends arc composed of non-Hsted shares of common stock and proprietary
clubs memhership which are carried al cost because fair value cannot be reliably measured. Fair
value cannot be reasonably determined because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant and the probabilitics ol the various estimates cannot be reasonably assessed.

invesiment Properiies
Investment properties are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the reporting date.

Fair Yalue Hierarchy
As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the following able presents the level of hierarchy of the
Company’s AFS debt and cquity instruments:

u14 .
Level | Level 2 [evel 2 Tavel 1 fave] 2 Level 3
Recuring fair walues
TTIEHSUTETTIE L |
AFY Finaneial Aszcts
Cinded deht secorities  F268,205803 F- F F317,060,215 B- -
Quarted eguity
RECMTitiEs 95,957 T3 - - 1Eal8304 - -
LUnguried cquity
secyrities - — 315,348 - - 54 bdl 3 6d
364, 161 516 — 135,348 306,776,358 — S4 b4 364
Tves|menl, proparlics - 203 450,347 - - 100,1&34,343“
F36d,143.516 F= WL ANI 63T BI0E 7746 599 P BASIRTOT

Fair value of quated debt and equity securities available-for-sale financial assets is derived from
quoted market prices in active markets.

Fair value of investment properties are derived using the direct market comparisen approach
{Nopte ).

As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, there were oo teansders bebween Level Elf‘td level 2 fair
value measwremients and na transfers into and nat of Tevel 3 fair value measurements.

LT i
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24. Financial Risk Maonagement Oljectives and Policies

The Group’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, receivables,

AFS financial assets, accounts payabics, accrued expenses and dividends payable, Cash and cash
cquivalents, short-term and long-term cash investments and AFS financial assets are uscd for
invesimeni purposes, while receivables, accounts payable and dividends payable arise from
operalions.

The Group’s aclivities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign exchange risk, price risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group has no significant exposure te interast rate risk as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, “The Group's overall risk management program focuses on
minimizing the potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance due to
unpredictability of financial markets,

The Group's exposures to these risks are manaped through close monitoring by the Group's key
management and BOD through the Finance and Investments Committee,

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk to sarnings or capitsl arising trom changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Group takes on exposure to ¢ffects of fluctualions in the prevailing foreign currency
exchange rates on its financial statements, Fluctuations in cxchange rales can have significant
effects on the Group’s reporied results. The Group is exposed to foreipn exchange risk arising
from its foreign currency-denominated cash, receivable and AFS financial assets accounts, The
Group's policy is to minimize economic and material transactional expusures arising from
vurrency movements agatnst the Philippine Peso.

The Group's foreign cummeney-denominated cxposurcs comprise significantly of its exposure in its
USE, Great Britain Pound (GGBP), and Indonesia Rupiah (IDR) financial assets.

The Group's significant foreign currency-denominated financial assets as at December 31, 2014
and 2013 arc as follows:

2014 2013 .
Driginal Feso Criminal Pesy
e Currency Equivalept Currency Equivalent
A55els;
Cash and cash equivalents:
L/3% 1,095 B3dd,1340 1,463,831 P54, 086,777
ITHR 2,178,556,351 1,795,233 6,456,142 217,642
ATD'S financial assets:
Luoted squity investments;
USE 2,500 111,800 9000 399,555
GRP 2,400 166,575 8,300 605,045
—  BRAITI2R e 106,209,019

For purposes of translating the foreien cumrency-denominated monctary assots and liabilitics as of
December 31, the exchanpe rates applicd were as follows:

2014 2013
Lss 44.720 44395
GRP 69.406 72897
113K 00034 .03
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The following table summarizes the impact an the consolidaicd financial statements of reasonably
possible changes in the exchange rates of fargign currencics against the Philippine Peso as at
December 31, 2014 and 2013 until the (roup’s next financial reporting date:

Increase (decrease)
Change in - in income before

US% rate income tax

2014 + 0.7% P51,489
- (1.7% {51,489)

2013 + 8% PS5, 230,907
- 8% (5,23{],9[}?}

Increase (decrease)
Change in int income before

GBP rate income tax

2014 + 5%, B§,329
-5% (8,319)

2013 + 1 0% B60,505
- 1% {60,503)

Increase (decrease)

Change in  in income before

IDR rate income tax

2014 1 16% #34,823
-16% (34,823)

There is no other effect on the Group’s equity other than those already affecting the consolidated
income hefore income tax,

Prive risk

Price risk is the risk that the vailue of a finaneial instrumnent will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. ‘The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk because of investments held by
the (Group, which are classitied on the consolidated statements of financial pogition as AFS
financial assets. '['he (froup employs the service of o third party stock broker to manage its
investment in shares of stock.

The following table presents the effect on the consolidated financial statements of reasonably
passible changes in market prices of AFS financial assets - quoted equity and debt securities as of
Lecember 31, 2014 and 20113 until the Group’s next financial reporting date:

Chunpe in
Queded Prices of Inerease
Investinents {decreasg)
{.arried at Fair Value in equity
2014
AFS financial assets Iocrease by 11.9% B7,293.201
AFS financial assets Decrease by 11.9% {7,293,201)
2013
AFS financial assets Increase by 9% B15,709915
AFE financial assets Decrease by 9% (35,70989]5)
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Crodir visk

Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur 4 loss because its counterparties failed to discharge
their contractual obligations. ‘The Group manages and controls credit risk by doing business only
with recognized, creditworthy third partics. Reccivable balanees are monitored on an ongeing
basis with the result that the {froup's exposure to bad debts 1s not significant. The Group does not
have any coilateral held as security and ather credit enhancements on its financial assets as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, "Therefore, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to
the carrying amount of its financial assets as at December 31, 2014 and 2013,

It is the Group’s policy lo maintain the receivables at a low level except for one-time non-ade
fransaction which the Group classifies under the collecrible/not impaired because the parties have
no history of default especially on transactions as agreed on the contract.

The following table provides information regarding the credit quality by class of financial assets
famounts gross of allowance for credit losses) based on the Group's credit rating system:

i 2014
Neither
Past Due nor Past Due
Impaired Anid
_(Satisfacinry) Tmpaired Total
I oans 3nd receivable:
Cash and cash equivalenrs* P47, 136,415 P P47,136,418
Feceivables:
Interest receivatrle 1,160,796 -- 1,160,796
Chher receivables 1,641,460 2,549,217 4, 100,677
. 2,802,256 2,549,217 5,351,473
ALS financial assets;
Diebt securities - quoted,
gt fair value 268,205,803 - 268,205,803
{uoted equity investments 95,957,113 - 85,957,713
Inguoled equity inveslments 135,248 4,094,435 4,225,683
e _ 1a4,298,764 4,090,435 368,389,199
P414,237 438 B6,639.652 P420,877.090
* Exeltuding cash on hand,
2013
Meither
fPast Due nor Prast Due
Impaired And
B {Satistactory) Impaired Total
Loans and receivable;
Cash and cash equivalents* £50,536,778 o HED 536,778
Receivables:
Interest receivable 1,693,932 - 1,693,932
(hher receivahles 1,337,967 2732947 4,070,214
_ 1,031,890 2,732,947 5,764 BAh
AFS financial agsets:
Dbt securities - quotad,
ar fair valoe VT 900 235 17,060 275
{mared equity mvestments THB16, 5497 - TR R16,597
Linguoted aoquiry investments 59,694,344 4090435 3K 73R 790
451,425,194 4,090,435 455,515,631
BS3AUDS ETI P FI3 487 BLa| 817,755

* Exeluding caga an hand.
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The credit quality of the finaneial assets was determined as follows:

Financial instruments classified as “high grade’ are those cash and cash cguivalents and cash
investnents transacted with reputabie local and multi-national banks and receivables with some
histary of default on the agreed terms of the conmract. AFS financial sssets are considercd

Hugh grade” since these are invested in blue chip shares of stock. “Past due and mpaired” are
those that are long outstanding and has been fully provided with an allowance for doubidul
accenunts, There are no past due but not impaired receivables as of December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively,

Concentrations of credil nisk arise from financial instruments that have simiiar characteristics and
are affected similarly by changes in economic or other conditions. There are no significant
congentrations of credit risk within the Group arising from financial assets since these are not
directly affeeted by changes in economic or other external conditions.

Ligquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Group could not be able to settle or meet its
abligations on tirne or al a reasonable price. Management is respensible for liguidity, funding as
well as settlement management. Management also ensures that the Group will maximize its gain
on trading of marketable seeurities 10 finance future capital intensive projects. The Group manages
its liquidity risk an a consolidated basis based on business needs, tax, capital or regulatory
considerations, it applicable, through numerous sources of finance in order to maintain flexibility.

The Group manages its liquidity profile to be able to finance its working capital requirements and
capital expenditures and service duc and matering debts. To cover ils financing requirements, the
Parent Conipany intends to use internally generated funds. The BOD clusely monitors (he Parent
Company’s financial position during its regular mectings,

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the financial instruments of the Group based
on remaining contractual undiscounted cash flows:

014
Morc Lhan
I months
Lest than but lest than More than
N 3 munthy GNL yEUT LI YEAT Tatul
FFinaneinl axgets
Loans and receivable;
Cash amel cush coquivalents ®IT, 143,667 [ = P- P47,143,661
Reccivables:
Acciued interest recelvable 1,160,796 - - 1,160,794
Ciher receivahlos 1,541,460 - - 1,641,460
43,945,917 - - 49,945417
Al financial assels - Quated dabt
Seruriiies 55.291,144 112,914,657 268,205 RIS
42045517 55.291.14a 212,914 457 318,151,720
Financial lisbilities
Loams aad Dorrowioes:
Accouns payahic and accrued
ERTIRPANS
Avcouns payable 12615823 - - 12615823
Drividends pavekle §88.714 = - 888,714
. 13,504,517 - — 13,504,537
Nel douidity pasition PG A41380 R58,291,145 #211,914,657 #304,647,153
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I HI1 . ]
B T
3 months
Less than but less than bMore tham
3 munlhs LIE Ear ane yoar loral
Financial assets
Loans and receivable;
Caxh and cask cguivaicnis FE 542,774 2 B RO, 542,774
Beceivables.
Adcrued inlerest receivable 1,603 932 1,693,531
(Hher recoivables 1,137 367 - - 1,337,847
13574673 - - 13,574,673
AlFH financial aszes - Quoted debt
Securities - 55,2010, 146 261,660,080 3117 960,235
83,574,673 53,291,146 262,665,080 401,534 908
Financial liakilities
Loans and borrowings;
Avcounls payable and accrucd
ERPENSLE:
Agcounts payeble UTR,557 - - 978,557
Dividends payeble KK, 714 BYE,714
1867271 - 1,867,271
Met liguidity position FE1, 107,402 P55 201,146 P62 6569 088 B109 667 637

Capital Management
I'he objective of the Group’s capital management iz to ensure that it maintains a healthy capital
ratia in order to support its business and maximize shareholder vatue,

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
gconomic conditions, F'o maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may issue new shares.
No changes were made on the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended

December 31, 2014 and 2013,

Management of working capital focuses on short-term decisions relating to cash and cash
equivalents and other current assets and liabilities. The goal of working vapiial management is to
ensure that the Group is able to continus its business operations and that it has sufficienl funds 1o
salis{y maturing current liabilities and operating expenses,

As al December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
reyuirements,

The table below summarizes the tolal capilal considered by the Group:

2014 20173
Capital stock B639.873.378 B531,940,878
Additional paid-in capital 32699360 32,6589 360
Retained earnings 131,173,685 133,974 416

B803,746,426  $798,214,654

ARt
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
ON SUTPLEMENTARY SCHEDULFES

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Basic Fnerpgy Curporation

7th Floor, Basic Petrolcum Building

C. Palanca, Jr. Street, Legaspi Villape
Makati City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the consolidated financial
statements of Dasic Energy Corporation and its subsidiaries as at Pecember 31, 2014 and 2013 and for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014, included in this Form 17-A, and have
issued our repart thereon dated March 26, 2014, Cur audits were made for the purpose of forming an
opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole, The schedules fisted in the Index to the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules are the responsibility of the
Company's management. These schedules are presentad for purposas of complying with Securities
Reprelation Code Rule 68, As Amended (2011) and are not part of the basic financial statements.
These schedutes have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
linancial statements and, in our opinion, [airly state, in all material respects, the information required
tu be set lorth therein in relation 1o the basic Gnancial statetnents taken ag & whole,

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

W eor Feaflitann

Jaime T7, del Rosario

Partner

CI'A Certificale No. 536915

S0 Accreditation No. 0076-AR-3 {Group A),
March 21, 2013, valid until March 20, 2016

Tax ldentification Wo, 102-096-009

BIR Acereditalion No. 08-001908-72-2012,
April 11, 2012, valid vntil April 16, 2015

PTR No. 4751273, January 2, 2015, Makati City

March 26, 2015

ARG
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BASIC ENERGY CORTPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

INDEX TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY SCH}_‘DT]LEE "

Schedule [
Schedule I1

Schedule T1T

Schedula TV
Schedule ¥V

. Supplementary schedules required lry Annex 64-E
. Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration

(Part |, 4C; Annex 68-C)

1 Map of the refationships of the companies within the group (Tor investments

houses that are pant of a conglomerate; Part 1, 411)

: Schedule of all effective standards and interpretation (Part 1, 41)
: Schedule showing financial soundness indicators
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BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SLBSIDIARIES

SCHEDITLEI

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 63-E

PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED

DECEMBER 31, 1014

Schedule A, Financizl Assets

AFE {tremcicl assels

Incirease (decrease) in fair

Description Beginning halances Dhsposals at cost value, net Ending balances
Ticht secunties - quoted. at fair
alus B317,960.,235 (B35,420,560} (814,333,872} P268,205 803
Investments in shares of stock:
Cunted 7R 816,507 - 17,141,114 G5.057.713
Unquoted 54,648,364 154,513,116} - 135,248
_ __. . 133464061 (89.933,676) AR 56,092,961
P4:1.425.196 (B89,933,676) P2,807,244 P364,298,764




BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIHMARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 68-E

PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED
DECEMBER 11, 2014

Schednje B. Ameunts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, and Principal Stockbkolders (Other than Related Parties)

Wame and

designation of Beginning Amounits  Amaounts wrilten

gehtar balances Addiions collected off Current Not current  Ending balances
Advances lu

Cficers and

Emplovess 11,525 B159,034 P B B170,554 P 170,559



BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

(TR ]

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 68-E

PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED

DECEMEBER 31, 2014

Schedule C. Amounnts Receivabie from Related Parties which are eliminated during the Consolidation of Financial Statcments

MName ard

desipnation of Beginning, Amounts  Amounts written

debor balances Additions collected off Current Not current Ending balances
BRI B16.975 000 P B16,975.000 B P B g
BLHHI 21,548,772 69 560 - : - - 21,618.281
BRC 5,738,370 76,346 - - - 5.814,716
{Basic 1,572,039 112,623 - - - - 3,684,662
LIS - 200 - - - - 200
SWH 100,005 71,949 - — - 171,254
Grandway 52,372,365 121,622,902 - - 173,065 267



BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SURSIDIARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 68-E

PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2614

Schedule . Intangible Assets - (ither Noncurreni Assets

{rher charges
Charged to cost and Charged to other additions
IDescripiion Beginning balance Additions at cosl EXPENSEs accounts (deducticns) Cnding balance

Goodwill #3,757.602 . B B P B3,757.602




BASIC ENERGY CORFORATION AND SUBSIMARIES

SUPFLEMENTARY SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 63-E

PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2014

Schedule E, Long Term Debt

Amount shown under caption
*Current position of [ong term deht’
in rejated statement of financial

Tile of issue and type of chligaticn Amount authorized by indenture pesition

Amount shown under capticn “Long
Term Debt’ in related statement of
financial posilion

- Not applicable -



BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUPFLEMENTARY SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 68-E

PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED
DECEMEER 31, 2014

Schedule E. Indebtedness to Related Parties (Long-Term Loans from Related Companies)

Name of related party Balance at heginning of period

Balance at end of period

- Not applicable -
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BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 63-E

PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2014

Schedule G, Guaraniees of Securities of Other Essuers

Mams of issuing entity of

securties guarantecd by the

Group for which this statement  Title of issue of each class of  Total amonnt guaranteed and  Amount pwned by a person

is filed secuTities puaranteed outstanding for which statement iz filad Mature of guarantes

- Not applicable -



BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUFPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 68-E

PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2014

Schedule H. Capital Stock

MNumber of shares No of shares held by
issved and -
cutstanding 28 Number of shares
shown under related  reserved for opticns,
Number of shares  financial condition  wartanis, conversion Drectors
Title of issuc antharized caption and othct rights Employees and Officers {thers
Commen shares 10,000,000,000 2,557 693 512 — 2,300,000 144,392,542 2,025,000




SCHEDULE II

BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF RETAINED EARNINGS
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION (Part 1, 4C; Annex 68-C)
DECEMBER 31, 2014

Unappropriated Retained Earninps, beginning PI33,574.416
Fair value ad]ustment of investment propurty (2,824,044)
Unappropriated Retained Karnings, as adjusted, beginning 130,750,372
Net loss dering the period closed o relained earnings {3,579,0462)
Less:  Noo-actusliunrealized income net of lax
Equity in net income of assosiate/foint venture -
Unrealized foreipn exchange gain - net (except those
atfributable to cash and cash equivalents) 2,373,974
Fair value adjustment (M2M pains) -
Fair value adjustment of investment property resulting to gain
Adjustrnent due to deviation from FIRSAGAAP - gain -
iher unrealized gains or adjustments to the retained esmings
as a result of certain tansactions sceounted for under the
PFRS -
Subtotal (1,205,088)
Add:  Non-actual losses
Drepreciation on revaluation increment {after tax} [ T
Adjustinent due to deviation frum PFRYGAAT - loss -
swbtotal 1,178,334
Nel Incotne (Laoss) Actoal/Realized [26,752)
Add (Lesa):
Prividend declarations during the period
Appropriations of retained earnings based on 10% of
December 11, 20014 andited net income -
Reversals of sppropristions -
Treasury shares (3,240,000) _
Subtokal {3,240,000) £3,240,000)

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, as adjusied, ending

B127.483.620




SCHEDULE 11}

BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSITHARIES

MAP OF THE RELATIONSHIPS OF THE COMPAXNIES
WITHIN THE GROUP (PART 1, 4H)




SCHEDULE TV

BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF ALL EFFECTIVE
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS (PART 1, 47}

List of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) jwhich consist of PFRS, Phitippine Accounting
Standards (FAS) and Thilippine Interpretations] and Philippine Interprecations Committee (PICY Q& As
effective a5 of December 31, 2014:

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements v
Conceptual Framework Phase A Objectives and qualitative
characteristios

PFRSs Practice Statemont Management Commentary ¥

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

PFRS51 First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial v
(Revised) |Keporting Standards

Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an
Investment in a Subsidiary, Juintly Controlled ¥
Entity or Associate

Amendments to PTRS |: Additional Cxemptions /
for First-lime Adopters

Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption trom

Comparative PFRY 7 Disclosures for First-time ol
Adopters
Amendments to PFRS 1; Severe Hyperinflation
and Removal of Fived Date for First-time v
Adopters
Amendments to PFRS 1. Government Loans v
PFRS 2 Share-based Payment ¥
Amendments to FFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and v
Cancellations
Amendments to PFRS 2; Group {Cash-settled v
Share-based Payment ‘ivansactions
PFRS 3 Business Combinations y
Revised)
PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts v
Amendments to PAS 39 and PIFRS 4: Financial >

Ouaranlee Conlracls




PFRS 5

Non-current Assels Held for Sale and
Discontinocd Gperations

PFRS 6

Exploration for and Bvaluation of Minerald
Resources

PFR5 7

Financial Instruments: THaelosures

Amendments to FFRS 7: Transition

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS T:
Reclassification of Financial Assets

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7;
Reclassification of Financial Asscts - Effective
Date and Transition

Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures
about [inancial Instruments

Amendments to PFRS 7, Disclosures - Transfers
of Financial Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Ofiselling
Financial Assets and Financial Liabililies

Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective
Date of PFRS % and Transition Disclosures

IFRS 8

Operating Scgrents

PFRS 9

Financial Instruments

Amendments 1o PFRS 9: Mandatory Effective
Date of PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

PYRS 10

Consclidated Financial Stalements

PFRS 11

Joint Arrangsments

PFRS 12

Disclosure of [nleresls in Cther Entities

PFRS 13

[Fair Value Measurement

R TN N

Philippine A

ccounting Standards

P4AS 1
(Revised)

Presentation of Financial Statemenis

Amendment to PAS 1: Capital Disclosures

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1. Pultable
Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on
Liquidation

!

Amendments o PAS 1: Presentation of ltems of
| Other Comprehensive Income

PAS 2

Inventories




PAST staterngnt of Cash Flows ¥

TAS S Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting v -
Lstimates and Errors

PAS 10} Events after the Balance Sheet Date v

TAS ]I Construction Contracts

PAS 12 Income Taxes v
Amendment to PAS |2 - Deferred Tax: Recovery v
of Underlying Assets

PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment d

PAS 17 Liases v

PAS 18 Revenue v

PAS 19 Employce Benefils v
Amendments to PAS 19: Actuarial (ains and y
Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures

PAS 19 Employee Benetits P

(Amended)

PAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and
Lisclogure of Governmen! Assistance

PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange P
Rates
Amendment; Net Investment in a Foreign v
Operation

PAS 23 Burrowing Costs

(Revised)

PAS 24 felated Party Disclosures P

fRevised)

PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit v
Flans

PAS 27 Separate Financial Statements v

{Amendcd)

PAS 25 [nvestments in Associalcs

PAS 28 Investments in Associates and Jeint Ventures

(Ameaded)

PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary

Evonomics

PAS 3]

Inierests in Joint Ventures




PAS 32 Financial Tngtruments: Disclosure and ~
Presentation
Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1 Pullable
Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on
Liquidation
Amendment ra PAS 12: Classification of Rights
Issues
Amendments (o PAS 32: Offsetting Financial v
Assets and Financial Liabilities
PAS 33 Eamings per Share v
PAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting ]
TAS 36 Impairment of Assets s
PAS 37 Pravisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent v
Assets
PAS 38 Intangible Assets v
PAS Y9 Financial Instruments: Recognition and -
Measurement
Amendments to PAS 39 Transition and Initial
Reeopnition of Financial Assets and Financial v
Liabilities
Amendments to PAS 3%: Cash Flow Hedge
Accounting of Forecast Intragroup 'Itansactions
Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Optien
Amendments to ['AS 39 and PTRS 4: Financial
Cruarantee Contracts
Amendments to PAS 3Y and PFRS 7: v
Reclassification of Financial Assets
Amendments fo PAS 39 and PFRS 7:
Reclassification of Financial Assets - Effective v
Drale and Transition
Amendments ta Philippine Interpretation
IFRIC-9 and PAS 39: Embedded Darivatives
Amendment two PAS 39 Eligible Hedped Dlems
PAS 40 Investment Property v
PAS 41 Agriculture




Philippine Inlerpretailions

IFRIC 1 Changes in Existing Decommissioning,
Restoration and Similar Liabilities

IFRIC 2 Members' Share in Co-operative Entities and
Similar Ingtruments

IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains 2
Lease

IFRIC 5 Rights to Interests arising from
Decommissioning, Restoration and
LErvironmental Rehabilitation Funds

IFRIC & Liabilitics arising from Participating in a Specific
Market - Waste Electrical and Electronic
Equipment

IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under
P45 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflalivnary
Economies

IFRIC 8 Scope of PFRS 2

IFRIC 9 Reagsessment of Embedded Derivatives
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation [FRIC—
9 and PAS 39 Embedded Derivatives

IFRIC 1 | interim Financial Reporting and Inpaiment

IFRIC I1I  |PFRS 2- Group and Treasury Share Transactiona

IFRIC 12 | Service Concession Arrangements

TFRIC 13 |Customer 1.oyalty Programmes

IFRIC 14 |The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum
Funding Requirements and their Interaction
Amendments to Philippine Interpretations
IFRIC- 14, Prepayments of & Mininmm Funding
Requiremeant

IFRIC 16  |Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operalivn

IFRIC 17 | Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

IFRIC 18 | Transfers of Assets from Customers

IFRIC 19 | Extinguishing Financial Liahilitics with Equity
Instruments

IFRIC 20 | Siripping Costs in the Production Phase of &

Surface Mine




SIC-7 Introduetion of the Euro

SIC-10 Government Assistance - Mo Specific Relation to
Crperating Activities

SIC-12 Ceonsolidation - Special Purpose Entities
Amendment to SIC - 12: Scope of 51C 12

SIC-13 Iointly Controlled Entities - Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers

SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives

51C-25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an
Entity or its Sharehnlders

SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Invoelving the Legal Form of a Lease

SIC-29 Service Concession Arrangements: [iscinsures,

RI1C-31 Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving
Advertising Services

8I1C-32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs




Sehedule ¥V

BASIC ENERGY CORFPORATION AND SUBSIDTARIES

SCHEDULE SHOWING FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68 AS AMENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2014

2014 2013

I'rofitability ratios:

Return an assets 0.01%0} {(3%%)

Heturn on squity £0.01%%) {304)

Met profit margin D% %%
Salvency and liguidity rativs:

Current ratio 3.94:1 50.19:1

Debt to LquUity ralo 0.03:1 0.02:t

Quick ratio 3.7%:1 40 M1

Agsct o cquily ratio 1.03:1 1 02:1



